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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

To the Baard of Directors of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları TAŞ.;

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accampanying consolidated financial statement of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik
Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together wili be referred ta as “the Group”)
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial pasition as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other camprehensive income, consalidated statement of
changes in equity and consalidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summsry of
signiflcant accounting policies and explanatary nates.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Group’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
flnancial statements in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards and for such internal
controls as management determines is necessary ta enable the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due ta error
and/ar fraud.

lndependent Auditors’ Responsiblllty

Our respansibility is ta express an opinion on these cansolidated financial slatements based on our
audit. Cur audit was conducted in accardance with Standards on Auditing as issued by the Capital
Markets Board af Turkey and Auditing Standards which are part of the Turkish Auditing Standards
issued by Public Oversight Accaunting and Auditing Standards Authority of Turkey. Those standards
require that ethical requirements are camplied with and that the independent audit is planned and
perfarmed ta obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements ara free from material
misstatement.

lndependent audit involves perfarming independent audit pracedures to abtain independent audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The independent audit
procedures selected depend on our professional judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the flnancial statements, whether dua to error andlar fraud. In making thase
risk assessments; the Company’s internal cantrol system is taken into cansideration. Our purpase,
however, is nat ta express an opinian on the eftectiveness of internal contral system, but ta design
independent audit procedures that re appropriate for the circumstances in arder ta identify the
relation between the financial statements prepared by the Graup and its internal cantral system. Our
independent audit includes alsa evaluating the appropriateness of accaunting palicies used and the
reaaanableness of accounting estimates made by the Campanys management, as well as evaluating
the averali presenlatian af the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained during aur independent audit is sufflcient and
appropriate ta pravide a basis far our audit apinian.
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(Convenience translaflon af a report and consolidated financial statements originaliy lssued in Turkish)

Opinion

in our opinion, the accompanying consoiidated financial statements present faidy, in ali matedal
respects, the financial position of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları TAŞ. and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2016 and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the Turkish Accounting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to the matter in Note 17 ta the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. The court cases related ta Capital Market Board’s (°CMB”) ciaim
that the Company had prepared its 31 December 2005 flnanciai statements in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards instead of Comrnuniqu Serial XI, No:25 on “Accounting
Standards in Capital Markets” without taking the permission of the CMR in prior years were conciuded
against the Company et Council of State and such conclusions deciared ta the Company via
notifications sent in July 2012. On 1 August 2012, the Company applied to the Administrative Court to
remove the confiicting decisions of this court; but the Administrative Couft decided to reject the
application by the notification made on 17 February 2014. However, Iawsuit filed by the Privatization
Administration <“PK) of The Turkish Republic is at the stage of appeal at the Supreme Court and is
pending as of the date of our report.

Repofls on Other Responsibilities Arising From Reguiatory Requirements

1) Auditors’ report on Risk Management System and Committee in accordance with subparagraph
4 Article 398 of Turkish Commercial Code no. 6102 (°TCC”) is prepared to be submitted ta the
Board of Directors of the Company on 7 February 2017.

2) in accordance with subparagraph 4, Article 402 of the TCC, na signiflcant matter has come ta
our attention that causes us ta beheve that the Campany’s bookkeeping activities for the period
1 January —31 December 2016 and financial statements are not in compiiance with the code
and provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation ta financial reporting.

3) in accordance with subparagraph 4, Mide 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted ta
us the necessary explanations and provided required documents within the context of audit

Güney64ğepetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
A n3şfirLöfıE?h\a Young Global Limited

v
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7 February 2017
Istanbul, Turkey
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(Convenience Translatian alo Engiislı of Consolidated Financial Slatemcnts OriginalIy Issucd in Turkish — Sec Nota
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITİON AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts ara cxprcsscd in Turki Linı (TRY Thousand”) unless aıhenvise indica:cd.)

The detalis of presentation currcncy translation ta TRY c,cpained in Nota 2.1.

The accompanying nates farm an integral pad of these consolidatod financial statements.

(Auditcd) (Audi(cd) (Audited) (Auditcd)
Cuneat Peıiod Cunent Pedod Previous Period Prcvious J’criad

31 Dccembcr 31 December 31 December 31 Dcccnıbcr
2016 2016 2015 2015

ASSEİS Nota USD’OOO TRYt000 USD000 TRY000

Cnn-tat Asscts 3.143.675 11.063.224 2,751.401 7.999.975

Cash and Cash Equivalcnts 4 1.303,396 4586.911 1.009.321 2.934.703
Financial DcrÇvativc Instrumcnıs 6 18.274 64.310 35,286 44.445
Tmde Receivabks 8 $73.114 2.016.901 561304 1.632.629

Dua Frorn RciowdPartks 30 15.594 53.877 14.834 43130
Ot/jet Tmde Rereivob!es 8 55Z520 1.962.024 546.670 1.589.499

Other Receivables 9 535 1.883 712 2.069
Invenıories 10 1.209.095 4.255.047 1.113.595 3.237.890
Prepaki Expcnscs Il 12.080 42.513 18.143 52.754
Oıber Current Assets 19 27.181 95.659 32.840 95.485

Non Currcnt Asscts 3.576.965 12.588.053 3.657.490 10.634.515

Other Receivables 9 3.918 13.787 5.183 15.069
Vinancial Invcstments 5 35 122 27 79
Financial Dcrivntivc Insiruments 6 1.692 5.955 14.639 42.564
lnveslment Propertias 12 26.961 94.882 24.670 71.731
Properiy, Piant and £quipment 13 3.453.050 12.151.972 3.530.218 10.264.461
Inlangible Msets 14 58.388 205,479 59.453 172.865
Prepaid Expenses 11 20.106 70.757 15.112 63.939
Deferred TaxAsscts 28 9.730 34.243 8.188 23.807
OtherNon Curreat Asseis 19 3.085 10.856 - -

TOTAL ASSETS 6.720.640 23.651.277 6408.89! 18.634.490



(Convcnience Translation into English of Consolidated Finoncial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — Sea Nole
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRiKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIAES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITİON AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amount ar: exıxcsscd in Turkislı Lim (“TRYThousand”) unles, otherwise indicated.)

(Auditcd) (Audilcd) (Autlited) (Audited)
Curreni Pıiod Cuntnt Period Previous Pedod Previnus Pedod

38 Dcccmber 31 December 31 Detenıber 31 December
2016 2016 2015 2015

LIABILITIES Nole USD000 TRY’OoO USD000 TRY’OOO

Currcnt Liabilitles 1.201.046 4.226.720 899.513 2.615.423
ShortTenn Borrowings 7 357.464 1.257,986 8.353 24.286
ShortTcrm Poflion of LongTerm Borrowings 7 296.649 1,043.968 360.179 .047.256
Financial Derivative Instrunıenls 6 5.438 19.137 6.705 19.495
Tradepayab!es 8 260.024 915.076 200.235 582.203

Dua to Reğated Pan/er 30 9.948 3i008 9.159 26:630
Ot/jet Trade Pa>eıbks 8 250.076 880.068 191.076 555.573

Otherrayables 9 11.970 42.126 11.583 33,680
DeferredRevenuc 20 30.221 106.353 32.115 93,377
Current Tax Liabilitles 28 129.468 455.624 74.896 217.769
Shoft Tanı Provisions 17 41.369 145.586 150.298 437.007
Payables for Enıployec Rendits 16 47.944 168.724 41.168 119.700
OthcrCurTentLbiIiIics 19 20.499 72.140 13.981 40.650
Non Curreni Liabililics 1.069.709 3.764.524 1.197.164 3.480.875
Long Tanı Borrovhıgs 7 459.631 1.617534 654.960 1.904.361
Fhıancial Derivative Ir.strnmcnts 6 535 2.060 7345 21.355
Provisions for Employee flenefits 16 161,235 567.419 173.997 505,915
Defeged Tax Liabilities 28 448,122 1.577.032 360.711 1.048.802
OtherNon Currcnt Liabililles 19 136 479 151 442
EQUIfl’ 4.449.885 15.660.033 4,312.214 12.538.192
Eqnily Aitribulable la £quiıy lloldcrs of the VatanI 4.321333 15207.669 4.189.170 12.180.429
Share Captal 21 1.818371 3500.000 1.818371 3.500.000
Inilation Adjuslmenlto Capkal 21 81.366 156.613 81.366 156.613
TreasuıyShares(-) 21 (60.387) (116.232) (60.387) (116.232)
SharejssuePremium (Discounls) 21 55.303 106,447 55.303 106.447
Other Comprehensivc IncameİExpense Not ta be

Reçlassifled IoProliU(Loss) (37.151) (72.090) (36.155) (80.580)
Revahiatton Reserve ofTangibleAsseis 10.757 29.437 12.623 27.215
Actuaria! (Loss)İcnlnfitnds (47.908) (/0)527) (48.778) (107 795)

Other Comprehısive Income/Eçense ta be
Reclassifıed ta Pmfit/(Loss) (41.532) 6.530.218 (31.483) 4,010.257

Cash E/on’ JFedging Gala (Lou) 2.277 8 013 (754) (2.19V
Fare iwı Cr,rrenq’ Translotion Resen’es (43.609) 6.522.205 (3ft729) 4.0)2.449

Restrkted Reserves Assorted from Proflı 21 516.714 1.166.197 441.058 950.831
Retained Eamings 21 1.486.278 2.420.078 1.506.960 2.527.180
Net Profit fortheperiod 502.381 1.516.431 414.137 1.125.913
Non-ContmIIing Inlvrests 128.542 452,364 123,044 357.763
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUIÜ’ 6.720.640 23.651277 6.408.891 18.634.490

The detajls of presenlation curency translalion ta TRY explained in Nde 2.1.

The aceompanying notes farm an integral part af these consalidated financial statements.
2
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(Convenience Translation into English ofConsolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — Sec Note
34)

ERELİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts arc cxprcsscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand’) untcss o)hcnust ındlcatL’d.)

)Aiüiird) (Aıxljtcd( l,4,öhşd) 1 ıüIcd)
Cwnnl Pedod Cunr,, Pedod Iöiaın reıiod fl?şioın Prıjod

1 Joıwr7- 1 J300a.y- 1 4 anıun. 1 3am,. -

il DccrnürlOlb il Deen*cr2016 il Dreendn 2015 31 Dtcenr 2015
8 Sl)’0 TR\’0 )SD

CASTI FW0Ş OI’FR8İİNG ACfl”UIFS 757.107 2336.153 1319.164 37123)6
Prolil (Los,) For t,. Period 520.689 1.571.702 427.521 8.162309
Mjlmen8, (0 Reconcile Profll (Los,) 469.040 1.391.299 561.901 ‘.558339

A4,wtnıcm, for c,cc,ahon arA Mrus33ıon Exerncs 2124 217916 157 779 236 511 56’ 442
A1uuomc,t for Ino,rrneo) Loos (RcprrsA cflrn,nrcm Lou> (5579 47023 15139 31159

1,I,,,srn’m.s f,,rI’rsı-u,,ın’t’kversa) of in rum,ı for Rcoenahk, 8.9 1 223 3 693 4530 12333
.lJ1u,rnwmr bar ir ı’,wo, Odc ‘orta) ofl’n ,,‘uun,) fr, b;’cno.’ne, (0 t 4)3 4 27) 9 671 36 636

ğnr)rni’nı,n, Re’erra( of )‘ror,.,,on) for )‘roprr;,’, ISa,,) and Fquyrn,e,,i (3 32 930 39 050 726 t 960
Ad,osimrrns for l’ ooo’ ons 28610 86262 98922 21,8 943

.4d,,,.,,nunr, )ur In,uuo,, (Rerer,a( af I’nns.,i,,r,) 1,,r bnpl,,(er 7i-ror,y,aI,,n, Boyu/il., 16 31 79) 105 0)6 30 954 64 156
.4r1)ı’snnupO f,,rI’rorn,o,, Rorero, (of I’n,ron,,,) fOr )‘e,,dmg Uarnn arı/ tr I.aw,un, 17 (6.18)) (18.656) 57 96.9 1,84 767

Ad,usımrrn, for mermi (Ineomo) and Ecprz,sns (6560) (19802) 17267 46934
‘pir,,,., fi,r b,,ere,i Irevrnr 26 (40.959) (123 634) (3) 753 ((6 276)

.4fpnimrno tOrInkresi Fspentc’ 27 33636 101.518 15077 122.551
(h,eanrrd ima,,,,,, (b,nnnr fr,,,, (rota Sa/e., (237) (16) 3 920 /0 659

M)uMnmrns for (TrgaaI,ncd Foıc,ian bchaogc fl,ffcrcoces (6610) (19951) (3 483) (9468)
AdıuMmerns for faar Valuc (Gam,) Lonses 12333 37228 12274 3336’)

A,i;,,.rln,roo fOr la,, 1 Ol,w f,ı,ın.o) Losçrs on Dorıvalsır I’o,aocmi I,,.on,rnr,as 27 12.333 37.228 12 271 33 369
Ad,ostmcms for Tas (Ineome) Expcn,ca 28 206 800 099 726 231 127 659057
Ad,utmmnts for Losomo (Gwns) on Dıs1msaI of Non-CuTCO Asocts 972 2034 (15 852) (43 097)

Adı,rolnuı,n, for ii, taos iz,ıs> ta Vısp,asa t n,f/’n,perır, 1/anı mü l)O>oq,me,,ı 25 972 2.934 982 2 670
Adj,, ‘ta 0,700 for? nue.o (haıisj o,, Otoır,na t ofi,;resmıeızt l’rnprr,,e., 25 . ‘ (16 834) (45 76

Ch,unes in World on Ca01IM (24.579) (%6.499) 493.1)20 ‘.434.787
Adiosonıc mo for Ocercooc (locrease) in Tradc R ece,pabtes (10252) (36 076) 191 911 559 282

Ikereasr <lno’n’au) in 7>a,/r 1/eco ,rahk’sfmo, Re)akd l’art,es (3.338) (1? 717) (2.312 (6.72))
Ik,rea,,- (buna.’ e) ‘ii 7flü0’ Ik000’ahk’s froni hurd )‘arnCs (6.9)4) (24 329) 191 223 566.003

Ad,oslments for flccrcaoe (locreose) in 016cr Recci’.ohtco Related (corn Opcrai,oos 4589 16 48 9535 27723
I7e,rra.ıe (b,,rcase) nı 0/her 1?e,r,rahks from Operau,,ano fr,,,,, hurd ları/rs 3569 36.348 9535 27723

Decrcaam (locreancl un Dcrınatint Financial Ion)rmocolo 9959 35038 9883 28736
Adlooırncrn, for Dccrcaae (locrrasc) un Instnl orıms (96 267) (338 784) 285351 829 687
Dcc,casc (Incrcanc) un Prepaid Ecpcrnms 1223) 43044 3389 9853

Irnmnlo for Inerca,c (Dccrcaac) un Trade Payablmo 59789 210409 20 159 586(4
b,cn’,,.u ak-on-au) ii lhude Pa,ah/r t,, ((ola/ol l’ar/;rs 2.381 %378 2 %55 8301
b,crea.,e (h>eçnau) 8 Ihı,te I’a(ahte h, hint-d I’artus 5.408 202,03/ 1 7 301 50 313

Ad,uo)rnmnls for Incrcaoc (Dccreasc) in O,hcr Payabico Relaled frorn Operahons 7 ‘63 25208 (3 789) (Il 0(7)
1,,crca.,c t )eLnsne) 0 000er la, ah/es 6 hIzınI /‘armTs Re/a(,sI (nin, fhrrrat,,n,r 7 163 25.206 (3 7%9 (t? 6)7)

Incrcasc (Dncrcaocl in Der,mı,,m L,ab,I,a,eo (11 340) (57 505) (16267) (47 298)
Ad,oaIrncnrs for ü(,cr Iraarcaac (Decrcuoe) in Wo,L,og Car,,a) 4549 6009 (7 ‘52) (20 793)

1 k-en-ooo T,, na,,> an fbhcr Aoeı, ISc(mrJ /)-,,o, Opera msr (19,) (1 ‘3) (1355) ‘3 939,)
b,,na.ır ‘fr,’, na,,’; an ()ıher “az ah/rt Iie(aacdfn,rn fsrnn.--,ı,, 459% /6 /83 (5 797; (16.554)

Coh nı. • Proriıkd Iıy Op.rs,inc AeİLoiun 965,150 2.976.502 1.382.445 4.855.435
Paoncms Rr)atrd ı,i’raoao,n frr L1ee,’e rTerrnunat;cnBc,zOTs 16 (12 58) (35 701) (15 058) (43 4)3)
Pa-oocrao Rr)atrd la ftF.r P,oas,e nt 7 (99 663) (330 833) (5 642) (15340)
lnennwTasmsRrfunj)i’ad) 28 (96222) (292818) (141 371) (3(43468

CASU Fl.OWS FROM INktStNG ArnTnEs (1 68362) (51 1479) (1 86.782) 1508.80!(
Caah 000oso Asusı Frorn PeomIme ofSlmeo nt Caçaral Lıcmease cr8an,c,a)m, z,3 nt 3o,n)

VenIcem, (8) (29) -

Oooh la/loto Son Salco o(Propeoov, Plan,. Ensnr.ocn: rd L,ianobk Aaneus 2 450 7 327 3 895 ‘3308
ün), b9hm.’ fromSa (es nt/na/on)’ P1m,, artI t4n,pnwnt 13.14,25 2460 ‘33’ 4895 13308

Caah Ou)flowfrorn Puehaae cfPmer,cny, Fiat,,. Eqmprnmm and lotanc,b)m Assds (162275) (389 827) (2050)8) (557382)
(ash (M0,uw fn,n, ton hane nf1’naprn. Iiarn and F1nrpnuı,ı Il ,15% 46) (479 1 ‘5) ı19 73/) (53’599,)
(as), fh,Wow fm,,, I’unha re af lnmng,hte Asrec 14 (3529) (/0 652) r 2’, (IV ‘83)

Oooh la/loto frcrn Sade, cflnoestrncm Propemw 12 . . 3 67 40 30
Cooh Mmncco 1 tıo Orten (8539) (30 050) ( ) 626) (4728)

(urfa,” A,/ıa,ncu’ça,,,t 1k/t, (Oven 14539) (3”’i5”( /1,1261 (4 716>
(ASIl FI.OWS FR081 FINANflNC ArnmF.5 (267,466) (691.791) (996)75) (2.735.)S7(

Cashla/1asofzcrn0c,mowro 838 157 2954835 1238628 3601435
(‘aOr in)),,,, fr,,. man, 83.9 /57 2981835 1336638 3 na) 435

ChQ3flowfrcrnRepaşrnems offlonooıoaa (754 353) (265:378) (1 6)6 15)1 (4 903 603)
(‘as), fh,zfl,a, fn,nı liman )5epas ,ıc,,a, (54 354) (2653 376) T) 6.96 366) (401(3603)

Dısıdcrnja Pod (369 979) (1 03) 534) (539 702) (1 308 700)
InImrma Paid (32 219) (97 334) (42 520) (116301)
In)mrro) R erene d 30959 23 630 33907 91313

NET INCULASE (DECREASE) İN (ASIl AND (ASIl EQUIVALENt DEFURE EFFECTOF
EXCIIASGE HAlE CIIANGES 321.279 1.141.883 136.507 367.677
Effccı nffochaner Ham [biner, on Oooh and Cii, Egzi,salcnto (27 203) 510.325 (70 224) 280216
NET INCRE’.SE (DECR%5E) İN (ASIl AND CANlI EOUIflLENİS 294.075 1.652.208 66383 747.893
[ASIl AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AT’DIEBEGIN’NING OF ‘fllEI’ER]OD 4 1.009.321 2.934.703 943.038 2 86 8)0
(ASIl AND CANlI £pUIVALENİS ATIlIL ENBOF THE PERIOD 3 0303396 4586.981 1,009321 2.934.703

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statemenıs Originaliy lssued in Turkish — 5cc Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Ancunıs ara cxprcsscd as Turkish Un (TRY Thousand”) unleçs othcnvise indicated.)

NOTE 1- CROUP’S ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Erdemir Grubu (“Group”), is composed of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. (“Erdemir” or “the
Company”), and its sııbsidiaries which it owns the majority of their shares or has a signiflcant infinence
on their managemeat structure.

The immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group are Ataer Holding A.Ş. and Ordu
Yardımlaşma Kurumu, respectively.

Ordu Yardımlaşma Kurumu (OYAK/Armed Forces Pension Fund) was incorporated on 1 Maroh 1961
under the Act No. 205 as a private entity under its own Iaw subject to Turkish civil and commercial codes
and autonomous in financial and administrative matters. OYAK, being an “aid and retiremcnt fund” for
Turkish Armed Forces’ members, provides various services and benefits within the framework of social
security concept anticipated by Turkish Constitution. OYAK has nearly sixty direct and indirect
subsidiaries in industıy, finance and service sectors. The detailed information about OYAK can be fotınd
on its orncial website (www.oyak.com.tr).

The Group was incorporated in Turkey as a joint stock company in 1960. The principal activities of the
Company are production of iron and steel rolled products, alloyed and non-alloyed iron, steel and pig iron
castings, cast and pressed products, coke and their by-products.

The Company’s shares have been traded in Istanbul Stock Exchange since the establishment of the
Istanbul Stock Exchange (yaar 1986).

The main operations of the companies included in the consolidation and the share percentage of the
Group for these companies are as follows:

Countryof 2016 2015
Name of the Company Operation Operation Share % Share %
iskenderun Demir ve Çelik A.Ş. Turkey Integrated Steel Producıion 95>07 95,07
Erdemir Madencilik San. ve Tic. A.Ş. Turkey Iron Ore and Pellet 90,00 90,00
Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tic.
A.Ş. Turkey Steel Service Center 100 100
Erdemir Mühendilik Yön. ve Dan. HIz. A.Ş. Turkey Management and Consultancy 100 100
Erdemir Romania S.R.L. Romania Silicon Stad Production 100 100
Erdemir Asla Pacific Private Limited Singapore Trading 100 100

As of 18 November 2016, İsdemir Linde Gas Partnership A.Ş. has been established through 50%-50%
partnership with the German Linde Group in order to supply the additional industrial gases reguired for
our subsidiary lsdcmir’s production and to reduce the costs with an effective and efficient management.
Isdemir Linde Gaz Ortaklığı A.Ş, which wiil be recognised by using the equity pick-up method is not
included in the consolidation as of the reporting period, by reason of not functioning yet, and that the
financial statements are not affccted significantly (Note 5).

The registered address of the Company is Barbaros Mahallesi Ardıç Sokak No:6 Ataşchir / İstanbul.
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(Canvenicnce Translation inta English ofConsolidated FinanciaL Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — Sec No:e
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI tA.Ş. AND [TS SUBSIARWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amnunts ara exprcssed as Turkisli Lira (“TaY Thausand’) unless othenyise indicated.)

NOTE 1- GROUP’S ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS (cont’d)

The number of the personnel employed by the Group as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
are as follows:

Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fab.T.A.Ş.
Iskenderun Demir ve Çelik A.Ş.
Erdemir Madencilik San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tie. A.Ş.
Erdemir Mühendislik Yön, ve Dan. HIz. AŞ.
Erdemir Romania S.R.L.
Erdemir Asla Pacific Private Lünked

____________________________________________________

Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fab.T.A.Ş.
Iskenderun Demir ve Çelik A.Ş.
Erdemir Madencilik San, ve Tie. AŞ.
Erdemi Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tie. A.Ş.
Erenco Erdemir Müh. Yön, ve Dan. 1-liz. A.Ş.
Erdemir Romanin S.R.L.
Erdemir Asla Pacific Private Limited

____________________________________________________

The Company and alI its subsidiaries in Turkey maintain their legal books of account and prepare their
statutory financial statements (“Statutory Financial Statements”) in aceordance with accounting principles
issued by the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) and tax legislation.

The Group’s consolidated financial statemenis and diselosures have been prepared in aceordance with the
communiqu6 numbered 1I-4,1 “Communiqud on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital
Markets” Ç’the Communiqud”) announced by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) (Iıereinafter wili be
referred to as “the CMB Accounting Standards”) on 13 June 2013 which is publlshed on OfticiaI Gazette
numbered 28676.

The financial statements are prepared on cost basis, except the derivative financial instruments and
tangible assets used for silicon steel and iron ore carried on fair value.

in aceordance with article 50 of the CMB Reporting Standards, companies should apply Turkish
Accounting Standardsrrurkish Financial Reporting Standards and its interpretations issued by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority of Turkey (“POA”).

Paid Haurly Paid Montly 31 Decemher 2016
Personnel Persennel Personnel

4.424 1.746 6.170
3.286 1.742 5.028

139 126 265
219 89 308

- 239 239
213 50 263

- 4 4
W281 3.996 12.277

Paid Hourly Paid Montb’ 31 December 2015
Personnel Personnel Personnel

4.530 1.797 6.327
3.446 1.816 5.262

128 127 255
215 87 302

- 240 240
218 50 268

- 5 5
8.537 4.122 12.659

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE
STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Presentation

CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
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(Convcniencc Translation into Engiisli of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — Sec Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND flS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHEYEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER2OI6

(Amounıs arz cxprcsscd s To:kish tim (TRY Thousand) unlc,s othawisc ndicai.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED HNANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

Functional and Reportin Presentation Currency

The ftınctional curreney of the Company and its snbsidiarics’ Iskenderun Demir ve Çelik A.Ş. “İsdemir”
and Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tie. A.Ş “Ersem” are US Dollars; Erdemir Madencilik San. ve
Tic. A.Ş. “Ermaden” and Erdemir Mühendislik Yönetim ve Danışmanlık Hizmetleri A.Ş. are TRY.

Funcifonal currencyfor the subsidiaries abraad

The fiınctional currency of the foreign subsidiaries Erdemir Asia Pacific Private Umited “EAPPL” is US
Dollars; Erdemir Roınania S.R.L is EUR.

Presentation currency translation

Presentation currency of the corsolidated financial statements is TRY. Accordingto IAS 21 (“The EWects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”) flnancial slatements, that are prepared in USD Dollars for the
Company, İsdernfr, Ersem and EAPPL; in Büro for Erdemir Romania, have been translated in TRY as the
following method:

a) The assets and liabilities on financial position as of3l December 2016 are translated from USD
Dollars into TRY using the Central Bank of Turkey’s exchange rate which is TRY 3,5 192=US $ 1
and TRY 3,7099EUR 1 on the balance sheet date (31 December 2015: TRY 2,9076= US $ 1,
TRY3,1776=EUR t).

b) For the year ended 31 December 2016, income siatemenis are ıranslated from the 12 months
average TRY 3,0185 = US $ 1 and TRY 3,3377=EUR 1 rates of 2016 ianuary - December period
(31 December2ül5:TRY2,7187US$ 1 TRY3,0181 = 1 EUR).

c) Exchange diWerences are shown in other comprehensive income as of foreign curreney translation
reserve,

d) The differences betwcen presentation of statutory and historical figures are recognised as translation
differenccs under equity. Ali capital, capital measures and other measures are represneted with their
statutory figures, other equity accounts are represented with their historic cost ügtıres in the
accompanying financial statements.

USD amounts presented in the financial statements

The figures in USD amounts presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
comprising the statements of financial position as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income, and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2016 represent the consolidated financial statements within the
frame of flınctional currency change that the Company has made, which is effective as of July 1, 2013,
prepared in accordance with the TAS 21- Eftects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Going concern

The Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with the going concern
assumption.
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(Conveıflence Translation loto English of Cansolidated Financial Statemcnts Originaliy Issued in Turkish —Sec Nato
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amourns art cxprcscd as Turkislı Lira CTRYThousand”) untcss otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED flNANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

Approval of the consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized to be published on 7 February
2017 by the Board of Directors, The General Assembiy has the authority to revise the financial
staternents.

2.2 Comparative Information and Rcshtement of Consolidated Financial Statements with Prior
Periods

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in comparison with the previous period in
order ta allow for the determination of the financial position and performance trends. The comparative
information is reciassifled when necessaiy in order to be aligned with tito current period consolidated
financial statements,

2.3 Consolidation Principles

The consolidated financial staternents inciude the accounts of the parent eompany, Ereğli Demir ve Çelik
Fabrikaları T.A.Ş., and its Sııbsidiaries on the basis set mit in scctions below. The financial statements of
the companies inciuded in the consolidation have been prepared as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements and are based on the statııtory records with adjustments and reciassifications for the
purpose of presentation in conformity TAS/TFRS promulgated by the POA as set out in the communiqu6
numbered 11-14.1, and Group accounting and diselosure policies.

Subsidiaries are the Companios controlled by Erdemir whcn it is exposed, or has rights, ta variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability ta aftcct those returns through its
power over the investee,

Subsidiaries nre consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to the Group and are no
langer consolidated from the date that the control ceases,

The statement of financial position and statements profit or loss of the Subsidiaries are consolidated ona
line-by-line bask and the carrying value of the investment held by Erdemir and its Subsidiaries k
eliminated against the related shareholders’ equiıy. Intercompany transactions and balances between
Erdemir and its Subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation. The cost oC and the dividends arising from,
shares heid by Erdemir in its Subsidiaries are eliminated from shareholders’ equity and income for the
year, respectively.

The table below sets out aH Subsidiaries included in the scope of consoiidation and diseloses their direct and
indirect ownership, which are identical to their economic interests, as of 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015 (%) and their functional currencies:

3! Decemher 2016 31 December 2015

Funalional O’tershp Eflbctive Functional Ownership Effectivc
Currency Inıcrest Shareho1ding Currency Interesi Shareholding

lsdcmir US Dollars 95,07 95,07 US Dollars 95,07 95,07
Etsem Us Dotars 100,00 100,00 US Dolhrs 100,00 100,00
Ermaden Turkish Lira 90,00 90,00 Turkish Lira 90,00 90,00
Erdemir Mllhcndislik Turkish Lira 100,00 100,00 Turkish Lira 100,00 100,00
Erdemir Ramania S.R.L. Rum 100,00 100,00 Büro 100,00 100,00
Erdemir Asla Pasirıc US Dollars 100,00 100,00 US Dolbrs 100,00 100,00
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(Convenience Translation irna ngIish cfConsolidated Financial Statcments Originally lssued in Turkish — Sce Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SURSIDİARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amcunıs ara cxprcs,d as Tu;kish Lira (“TRY TIıoıı5and’) unles, otherwiçc indicated.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL
STATELVIENTS (cont’d)

2.4 Comparative Information and Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements with Prior
Feriods

The Group’s consolidated financial stafeınents are presented in accordance with the communiqud
nuınbered 11-14,1 “Communiqu on the Principles of Financial Reporting İn Capital Markets” (“the
Communiqu”) announced by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”). The Oroup’s consolidated financial
staternents are prepared in comparison with the previous period in order to allow for the determination of
the financial position and pcrformance trends in accordance with a new illustrative financial statements
and guidance that has been effective frorn the interim periods ended after 30 Jane 2013.
Presentation, considering with the TAS taxonoıııy published on 6 June 2016 by POA, reclassiflcations of
financial position are as follows:

(Prcviously
Reported) (Restated) (Difference)

Account 31 December 2015 31 Decembes’ 2015 31 December 20 [5

Property, Planı and Eguipmcnt (l)
10.234.969 10.264.461 29.492

Iniangıble Assets 202.357 172.865 (29.492)

(1) Exploration costs and other assets with spesific useful life arnounting to TRY 29.492 thousand that
was reported under “Intangible Assets”, 15 reclassifed under “Property, Plant and Equiprnent” in
consolidated financial statements as of3l December 2015.
Reclassiflcations of incorne statement are as follows:

(Previously
Rcpoıted) (Restated) (Difference)

1 Janunıy - 1 Januaıy - 1 Januaıy -

Account 31 Dccember2ol5 31 December 2015 31 December 2015

FinancialExpense ‘) (576.343) (191.144) 385.199
Deferred Tax (Expense) Income 198.549 (186.650) (385.199)

(1) Foreign exchange loss from deferred tax base arnounting to TRY 385.199 thousand which vere
reported under “Finance Expense” was reelassificd to “Deferred Tax (Expense) Income” on the
consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2015.

2.5 Significant Judgments and Estimates of the Group on Application ofAccounting Policies
The Group, aceording ta TAS makes estimates and assumptions prospectively while preparing its
consolidated financial statements. These accounting estimates are rareiy identical to the actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that may cause sigrilficant adjustments to the carrying values of assets and
Iiabilities in the following reporting periods are listed below:

23.1 Useful lives of property, plant and equipmcnt and intangible ossets
The Group calculates depreciation for the flxed assets by taking 1am account their production amounts on
the basis of cash flow unit set by independent expert valuation flrm and useful lives that are staled in Note
2.8.3 and 2.8.4 (Note 13, Note 14).
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statcments Originally lssued in Turkish — Sce Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounıs am cxpresscd as Tıırkish tim (‘TRY Thousand’) unIess oLhcrviac indkrn,d )

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.5.2 Deferred tax

The Group recognizes deferred tax on the temporary timing difterences bctween the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial staternents prepared in aceordance with TFRS and satutory financiai
statements which is used in the computation of taxable profit. The related differences are generally due to
the timing difference of the tax base of some income and expense items between statutory and TFRS
financial statements. The Group has deferred tax assets resulting from tax loss carry-forwards and
deductible ternporary differences, which could reduce taxable income in the future periods. Ali or partial
amounts of the realizable deferred tax assets are estimated in current circumstances. The main factors
which are considered include future earnings poteııtial; cumulative flscal losses in recent years; history of
ioss carry-forwards and other tax assets expiring, the carry-forward period associated with the deferred
tax assets, future reversais of existing taxable teınporary differences that would, if necessary, be
irnplernented, and the nature of the income İhat can be used to realize the deferred tax assel Note 28).

2.5.3 Fair vaiues of derh’ative financial instruments

The Oroup vaiues its derivative financial instruments by using the foreign exchange and interest rate
estimations and based on the valuation estimates of the market values as of the balance sheet date (Note 6).

2.5.4 Provision for doubtful receivables

Allowance for doubtfui receivables reflect the future Ioss that the Group anticipates ta incur from the
trade receivables as of the balance sheet date which 15 subject ta cohlection risk considering the current
econornic conditions. During the impairrnent test for the receivables, the debtors are assessed with their
prior year performances, their credit risk in the current market, Iheir performance after the reporting date
up to the issuing date of the ünancial statemcnts; and also the renegotiation conditions with these debtors
are considered. As of reporting date the provision for doubtftd receivables is presented in Note 8 and Note
9.

2.5.5 Provision for invcntories

During the assessment of the provision for inventory the following are considered; analyzing the
inventories physically and historically, considering the empioyment and useflılness of the inventories
respecting to provision for inventories accounting pohicy of the Company. Sales prices listed and related
data by sales prices of realized sales after balance sheet date, average discount rates giyen for sale and
expected cost incurred to selI are used to determine the net reahizabie value of the inventories. As a result
of this, the provision for inventories with the net reahizabie values below the costs and the show moving
inventories are presented in Nota 10.

2.5.6 Provisions for employee benefits

Actuarial Assumptions about discount rates, inilation rates, future saiary increases and employee turnover
rates are made to calculate Group’s provision for employee beneflts. The details reiated with the defined
benefit plans are stated in Note 16.

2.5.7 Provision for iawsuits

Provision for lawsuits is evaluated by the Group based on opinions of Group Legal Counsel and legal
consultants. The Group determines the amount of provisions based on best estimates. As of Reporting
date, provision for hawsuits 15 stated in Note 17.
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(Convenience Translution into English of Consolidated Financial Statcments Originaliy Issued in Turkisli — Sec Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts am expressed as Turkkh lira (TRY Thousand”) unless nthrnviae indicalcd.)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.5 Significant Judgments and Estimates of the Group on Appllcation of Aecounting Policies (cont’d)

2.5.8 Provision for termination fee of long term contract

The Oroup has initiated termination process of long-terrn service agreernent, which is signed on Il
August 2008 to transport of overseas iron ore stıpplies with capesize vessels for 2008-2022 period, in the
last quartcr of 2015. The Group Management has concluded tlıat there is a constructive obligation
because of the Management’s decision and supplier’s intention towards termination process related to the
contract as of 31 December 2015 and possibility of cash outflow is more Iikely İhan not. The parties
reached a certain agreement on 24 February 2016 on termination of the aforementioned agreement witli
USD 75.000 thousand terminadon fee and signing of a new freight contract linked with market prices.
Therefore, it is considered Ihat subsequent agreement on termination cost, is an adjusting evcnt after the
balance sheet dale since it lets the measurability of constructive obligation in a trustable manner. As a
result, USD 75.000 thousand provision for termination fee of long term contract is recognizcd as of 31
Deceınber 2015 (Note 17 and 25).

2.5.9 Impairments on Assets

The Group, performs impairment tests for assets that are subjcct to depreciation and amortization in case
of being not possible Lo prevent recovery of the assets at each reporLing period. Assets are grouped at the
lowest levels which there are separateiy identiflable cash flows for evaluation of impairment (cash
generating uniis). As a resulı of the impairment tests performed by the Group, no additional impairmem
is estiniated in the nccompanying financial stateınents except provision for inıpairınent of non flnancial
assets amounting to TRY 39.058 thousand (Note 13).

2.6 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilitles are oftsct and the net amounts are reported with their net values in the
balance sheet where either there is a legaliy enforceable right to offsct the recognized amounts or Ihere is
an intention to senle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2016 are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new
and amended TFRS and TFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 Januaıy 2016. The effects of these
standards and interpretations on the Group’s financial position and performance have been disclosed in
the related paragraphs.

The new standards, amendments and interpretations wbich are effeetive as at 1 January 2016 are as
follows:

TFRS 11 Acguisition of an Interest in a Joint Operation (Amendment)

TERS 11 is amended to provide guidance on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations in which the activity constitutes a business. This amendment requires the acquirer of
an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a business, as defined in TFRS 3
Business Combinations, to appy al] of the principles on business combinations aceounting in
TFRS 3 and other TFRSs except for those principles that conflict with the guidance in İhis TFRS.
in addition, the acquirer shall disclose the information required by TFRS 3 and other TFRSs for
business combinations. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on
financial poshion or performance of the Group.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

• TAS 16 and TAS 38 - Ciarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Amendrnents to TAS 16 and TAS 38)

The amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38, lıave prohibited the use of revenue-based depreciation
for property, plant and equiprnent and signiflcantly limiting the use of revenııe-based
amortisation for intangible assets. The arnendments did not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

The new standards, nrnendrncnts and interpretations which are effective as at 1 January 2016 are as
follows: (cont’d):

• TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and TAS 41 Agriculture— Bearer Plants (Amendrnent)

TAS 16 is amended to provide guidance ihat bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees and
oil palıns should be accounted for in the same way as property, planı and eguipment in TAS 16.
Once a bearer planı is mature, apart frorn bearing produce, its biological transformation 15 no
longer significant ili generating future economic benefits. The oniy significant future economic
beneflts it generates corne from the agricultural produce that it creates. Because (heir operation is
similar ta that of rnanufacturing, either the cost model or revaluation model should be appiied.
The produce growing on bearer plants wili remain within the scope of TAS 41, measured at fair
value less costs to seli. The amendment did not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

• TAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to TAS 27)

Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA) of Turkey issued an
amendment to TAS 27 to restore the option to use the equity method to account for investments
in subsidiaries and associates in an entity’s separate financial statements. Therefore, an entity
must account for these investments either:

o At cost
o in accordance with IFRS 9, Or
o Using the equity method defined in TAS 28

The entiiy must apply the same accounting for each category of investments. The amendment is not
applicable for the Group and did not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

• TFRS 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture (Amendments)

Amendments issued to TFRS 10 and TAS 28, to address the acknowledged inconsistency
between the requirements in TFRS 10 and TAS 28 in dealing with the tass of control of a
subsidiary that is contributed ta an associate ot a joint venture, to clarit’y that an investor
recognises a fulI gam or loss on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as
defined in TFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The gam or loss
resulting frorn the re-measurement at fair value of an investment retained in a former subsidiary
should be recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in that former subsidiary.
The amendment did not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Rcviscd Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at 1 January 2016 are as
follows: (cont’d):

• TFRS 10, TFRS 12 and TAS 28: Investment Entitics: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendrnents to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

in February 2015, Amendments issued tü TFRS 10, TFRS 12 and TAS 28, to address the
following issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under TFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements; i) the exemption frorn presenting consolidated financial
statemenıs applies tü a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investrnent entity, when the
investment entity measures alI of its subsidiaries nt fair value, ii) oniy a subsidiary that is not an
investrnent entity itseif and provides support services to the investment entity is consolidated. Ali
other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at fair valuc, Hi) the amendments to TAS
28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures allow the investor, when applying the eqııity
method, to retain the fair value rneasurement applicd by the investment entiiy associate or joint
venture to its interests in sııbsidiaries. The amendmcnt did not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

• TAS 1: Disolosure Initiative (Amendments to TAS 1)

The amendments issued to TAS 1. Those amendments include narrow-focus improvements in the
following üye areas: Materiality, Disaggregation and subtotals, Notes structurc, Diselosure of
accounting pohicies, Presentation of items of other comprehensive income (OCI) arising frorn
equity accounted investments. The amendrnent did not have an impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to TFRSs - 2012-2014 Cycle

POA issued, Annual Improvernents to TFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle. The document sets out üye arnendments
tü four standards, excluding those standards that are consequentially amended, and the related Basis for
Conclusions. The standards affected and the subjects of the arnendments are:

• IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — clarifies that changes in
methods of disposal (through sale or distribution to owners) would not be considered a new plan
of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan

• IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — ciarifles that the assessment of servicing contracts
that includes a fee for the continuing involvement of financial assets in accordance with IFRS 7;
the offsetting diselosure requirements do not apply to condensed interim financial statements,

• hAS 19 Employee Bcnefits — clarifies that market dcpth of high quality corporate bonds is
assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obLigation is located.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOHDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvements to TFRSs - 2012-2014 Cyclc (cont’d)

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting —clarifies that the required interim disclosures must either be
in the interim financial statemenıs or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim
financial statements and wherever they are included within the interim financial report.

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted:

Slandards. interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet eftective up to
the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statemenis are as follows. The Group wili make the
necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which wiil be affecting the consolidated financial
staıements and disclosures, when the new standards and interprelations become effective.

TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

in September 2016, POA issued TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new
standard issued includes the clarifying amendments to IFRS 15 made by IASB in April 2016.
The new five-step model in the standard provides the recognition and measureınent requirements
of revenue. The standard appiies to revenue from conlracts with customers and provides a model
for the sale of some non-financial assets that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities
(e.g.. the sale of property. plant and equipment or intangibles). TFRS 15 effective date is January
1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. Entities wiil transition to the new standard foilowing
either a fulI retrospective approach er a modifled retrespective approach. The modifled
retrospective approach wouid allow the standard to be applied beginning with the current period,
with ne restaıement of the comparative periods, but additional disclosures are required. The
Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or
performance of the Group.

TFRS 9 Fjnancial Instruments

in January 2017, POA issued the (inat version of TFRS 9 Financial lnstruments. The (imal
version of TERS 9 brings together alI three aspects of the accounting for financiah instruments
project: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. TFRS 9 is built on a
logicat. single ciassification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the
business model in which they are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Built upon this is a
forward-looking expected credit loss model that wilI result in more timely recognition of ban
losses and is a single model that is applicable to alI financial instruments subject to impairment
accounting. in addition. TERS 9 addresses the so-called ‘own credit’ issue, whereby banks and
others book gains through profit or Ioss asa result of the value of their own debt falling due to a
decrease in credit worthiness when they have elected to measure that debt at fair vaiue. The
Standard also includes an improved hedge accounting model to better link Ihe economics of risk
management with its accounting treatment. TERS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on
er afler 1 January 2018, with eariy appiication permitted by appiying alI requirements of the
standard.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Standards issued but not yet effcctive and not early adopted (cont’d):

TFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (cont’d)

Alternativeiy, entities may clcct to early apply oniy the requiremenls for the presentation of gahıs
and losses on financial iiabiiities designated as FVTPL without applying the other requirements
in the standard. The Group has performed ü high-level impact assessrnent of TFRS 9. This
prelirninnıy assessment is based on currentiy available information and may be subject to
changes arising frorn further detailed anaiyses or additional supportable information being made
available to the Group in the future. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the
standard on financial position or performance of the Group.

The new standards, arnendments and interpretations ıhat are issued by the international Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by Public Oversight Authority (POA):

The following standards, interpretations and arnendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by the
IASB but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial staternents. However, these
standards, interpretations and arnendments to existing IFRS standards are not yet adapted/issued by the
POA, ıhus they do not constitute part of TFRS. The Group wiIl nıake the necessary changes to its
consolidated financial staternents after the new standards and interpretations are issued and becorne
effective under TFRS.

• IFRS 10 and IAS 2$: Sale or Contribution Assets between an lnvestor and its Associate Dr
Joint Venture (Amendrnents)

in December 2015, the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefiniteiy
pending the outcorne of its research project on the equity method of accounting. Early application
of the amendments is stili permitted.

Annual Improvcments —2010—2012 Cycle

• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

As elarifled in the Basis for Conelusions short-term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rates can be heid at invoice amounts when the eWect of discounting is immaterial. The
amendmcnt is effective immediateiy.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (eont’d)

Annual Jmprovements — 2011—2013 Cycle

lFRSlELeases

The IASB has published a new standard, IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. The new standard brings most leases
on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model, elimiııating the distinction between operating
and finance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largeiy unehanged and the distinction
between operating and finance Icases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and related
interpretations and is effectivc for periods beginning on or after Januaıy 1, 2019, with earlier
adoption permitted if IFRS 15 Revenue fiom Contracts with Customers’ has also been applied.
The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on flnancial position or
performance of the Group.

tAS 12 Ineorne Tazes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments)

The IASB issued amendments to İAS 12 Incorne Taxcs. The aınendınents clarify 1mw to account
for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at felç value. The amendments clarify
the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses, to addrcss diversity
in practice. These amendrnents are 10 be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on
or after ianuary 1,2017 whth earlier app]ication permitted. However, on initial application of the
amendment, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period ııay be
recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity.
If the Group applies this relief, it shall disclose that fact, The Group is in the pracess of assessing
the impact of the amendments on financial position or performance of the Group.

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Casli Flows’. The amendments are intended
to c1ari’ hAS 7 to improve information provided to users of financial statements about an entity’s
financing activities. The improvements to disclosures require companies to provide information
about changes in thcir financing liabilities. These amendments are ta be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted. When the Group
first app!ics those amendments, it is not required ta provide comparative information for
preceding periods. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on
financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRS 2 Ciassification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Tmnsactions (Amendments)

The IASB issued amendmdents to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, clarifying how to account for
certain types of share-based payment transactions.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLATED HNANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financia! Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cycle (cont’d)

IFRS 2 Ciassification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments)
(cont’d)

The amendments, provide requirements on the accounting for:

a) The effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settted
slıare-based payrnents,

b) Share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations, and

c) A modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based paymeni that changes the
ciassification of the transaction from cash-settlcd to equity-settled.

These arnendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Earlier appiieation is permitted.

IFRS 4 Insumnce Contracts (Amendments)

in September 2016, the IASE issued amendments to IFRS 4 insurance Contracts. The
amendrnents introduce two approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. The
amended Standard wilI:

a) Give alI cornpanies that ssue insurance contracts the option ta recognise in other
eomprehensive incorne, rather than profit or loss, the volatility that could arise when
IFRS 9 Financial instruments is applied before the new insurance contracts Standard is
issued; and

b) Give companies whose activities are predominantiy connected with insurance an optional
temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 Financial instruments unlu 2021. The
entities that defer the application of IFRS 9 Financial instruments wilI continue to apply
the existing financial instrurnents Standard—IAS 39.

These amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Earlier application is permitted.

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendrnents)

The IASE issued amendments to IAS 40 ‘lnvestment Property ‘. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the changc in use. These amendments are 10 be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 ianuary 2018. Earlier application is permitted.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cyele (cont’d)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Curreney Transaetions and Advanee Consideration

The interpretation elarifles the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of
advance consideration in a foreign curreney.

The lnterpretation states Ihat the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or ineome is the date on
which an entity initialiy recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary Iiability arising frorn
the payment or receipt of advance consideration. An entity is not required ta apply this
Interpretation to income taxes; or insurance contracts (inclnding reinsurance contracts) it issues
or reinsurance contracts that it holds.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or eller 1 ianuary 2018.
Earlier application 15 permkted.

Annual Irnprovements ta IFRSs - 2014-2016 Cyclc

The IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014—2016 Cycle, amending the following
standards:

• IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of international Financial Reporting Standards: This amendrnent
deletes the short-term ecemptions about some IFRS 7 disclosures, IAS 19 transition provisions
and IFRS 10 lnvestment Entitles. These aınendments are ta be applied for annual periods
beginningonorafter 1 January 2018.

• IFRS 12 Disclosure of lnterests in Other Entities: This arnendment clarifies that an entity is not
required to disclose summarised financial information for interests in subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures that is ciassifled, ar included in e disposal group that is ciassifled, as held for sale
in accardance with IFRS 5 Non-curreni Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations. These
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning Ofl or afler 1 Januaıy 2017.

• IAS 28 lnvestments in Associates and Jaint Ventures: This amendment clarifles that the election
ta measure an investment in an associate or a john venture held by, or indirectly through, a
venture capital organisation or other quaLif’ing entity at fair value through profit or loss applying
IFRS 9 Financial lnstrurnents is available for each associate or john venture, et the initial
recognition of the associate or joint venture. These amendments are to be applied for annual
periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2018. Earlier application 15 permitted.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance
of the Group.

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies

Valuation principles and accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidated ünaneial
statements are as follows:
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Signifleant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.1 Revenue recogaition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the received ot receivahle amouut. The estimated customer
returns, rcbates, and other sinıiiar allowances are deducted from this amount.

Sale of eoods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when ali the foliowing conditions are satisflcd:

• The Group transfers the signiflcant risks and beneflts of the ownership of the goods to the buyer;
• The Group retains neither a continuing managerial invoiveınent usualiy associated with

owncrship nor cffective control over the goods said;
• The arnount of revenue is measured reliably;
• it is probable that the econornic beneflts associated with the transaction wili flow to the Group;

and
• The costs incurred or to be incurred due to the transaction are measured reliabiy.

Dividend and interest incoıne

İnterest revenue i accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected hife of the financial asset to that asset’s net carıying amount. Group’s interest income from
time deposits 15 recognized in financial income. Group’s interest income from sales with maturitles is
recognized in other operating income.

Rental income

Rental income from investment propcrties is recognized on a straight-Iine basis over the term of the
relevant lease and recognised under other operating incorne.

2.8.2 Inventories

lnventories are vaiued al the Iower of cost or net realizable value. The costs, including an appropriate
portion of flxed and variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories heid by the method most
appropriate to the particular class of inventory, with the majority valued by using the monthly weighted
average method. Net realizable value is the estimated selhing price in the ordinary course of business, iess
estimated costs of compiation and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.8.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment purchased before 30 June 2013 are diselosed in the financial statements at
their indexed historical cost for infiation eftects as at 30 June 2013, on the other hand the purchases made
in 30 June 2013 and in later periods are presented at their historical cost, less depreciation and impairment
loss. Except for land and construction in progress, other tangible asseis are depreciated according tü
straight-iine basis or units of production method basis using the expected useful lives and production
amounts of the assets.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FXNANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles AppliedI Significant Accounting Policios (cont’d)

2.8.3 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

The Group’s tangibf e flxed assets operating in the production of iron ore and Iıigh silicon fiat steel are
stated in the balance sheet at their fair vakit amounts at the date of acquisiüon. Any increase arising from
the revaluation of the existing asseis is recorded under the revaluation reserve, in the shareholders’ equity.
A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of assets is charged tü the consolidated income
statement tü the extent that it cxcceds the balance in the revaluation reserve that is related to the previous
revaluation.

The carrying values of property, plant and equiprnent are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. lfany such indication exists
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the asseis or cash-generating
units are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of properiy, phant and
equipment is the greater of net selling price and value in use.

in assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash fiows are discounted to their present values using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessrnents of the time vakit of money and the risks
specific tü the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash infiows, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. lmpairment hosses are
recognized in the consohidated income statement.

The rates that are used to depreciate the tixed assets are as fohlows:

Rates
Buildings 2-16%
Land improvernents 2-33% and units of production level
Machinery and equiprnent 3-50% and units of production level
Vehicles 5-25% and units of production level
Furniture and fixtures
Exploration costs and other flxed assets wiih speacial useful lifes 5-10% and units of production level
Other tangible fixed assets 5-25%

Expenses afler the capitahization are added to the cost of related asset and reflected in financial statements
as a separate asset if they shall mostiy provide an economic benefit and their cost is measured in a
trustable manner. Tangible assets are reviewed for impairment if there are conditions showing that the
securitles are more than arnount recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest heyet which is cash
generating unit in orda to determine impairment. Carrying amount of a tangible asset and recoverable
value is the one which is higher than the net sales price following the deduction of commensurable vaine
for the sale of the asset. Useful life of assets are reviewed as of date of balance sheet and adjusted, if
required.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENIS (eont’d)

2.8 Valuation Prineiples Applied / Significant Accounting Policios coııt’d)

2.8.3 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Maintenance and repair expenses are recorded as expense to the incone staternent of the related period.
The Company omits ilie carrying values of the changed pieces oceorred with respect to renovations from
the balance sheet witlıout considering whethcr they ore subjcct to depreciation in an independent manner
from other sections. Main renovations are subject ta deprecation based on the shortesı of residual life of
the related tangible asset or useflıh life of the renovation itself.

Advances paid related to purchasing of tangible asscts are monitored in prepaid expenses under fixed
assets until the related asset is capitalized or recognized under on-going investrnents.

2.8.4 Intangible asseis

Intangible assets purchased before 30 June 2013 are recognized at their acguisition cost indexed for
infiation effects as al 30 June 2013, on the other hand the purchascs made in and afler 30 June 2013 are
recognized at acquisition cost Iess any amortization and impairmeni loss. Intangible assets are amortized
principaliy on e straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and production amounts. The
cstimated useftıl life and ainortization ınethod are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period,
and any changes in the estiınate are accounted for on a prospective basis.

The amortization rates of the intangible assets ait stated below:

• Rates
Rights 2-33%
Other intangible flxed assets 20-33%

2.8.5 Investment propcrties

lnvestment properties, which are heid ta cam rental income and/ot for capital appreciation are measured
initialiy aL cost any accumulated impairment losses.

lnvestment properties ait derecognized when eithet they have been disposed of or whcn the investment
property is permanentiy whhdrawn [rom use and no future econornic benefit la expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income under othıer operating income/(expense).

2.8.6 Impairment of assets

Assets subject ta depreciation and amortization are tested for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of net selling price and value in use. Recoverable amounts are estimated for
individual assets (for the cash-generating unit). Non-financiaL assets that are impaired are evaluated for
reversal of impairment amount at each reporting date.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED flNANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied ! Significant Accounting Poiicies (cont’d)

2.8.7 Uorrowiug costs

Barrowing costs that are direotly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, one that takes a substantial period of time ta get ready for use or sal; are capitalized as part of the
cost of that asset in the period in which the asset is prepared for its iııtended use or sale. lnvestment
revenues arising frorn the temporary utilization of the unused portion of facility loans am netted offfrom
the costs eligible for capitalization.

Ali other borrowing cosis are recognized directly in the consolidated income statement of the period in
which they ait incurred.

2.8.8 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial ilabilitles are recognized in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet when
the Group becomes a lega’ party for the contractua) provisions of the financial instrurnent.
Financial assets

Financial assets, are initialiy measured at fair value, less transaction costs except for thcse financial assets
ciassifled as at fair valuc through profit or loss, which are initially measured nt fair value. Ali financial
assets are reeognized and dcrecognized on a trade dale where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the tirneframe established by
the market.

Financial asseis are classifled into the following specifled categories: financial asseis as ‘al fair value
through profit or loss’, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for—sale financial assets’ and ‘loans and
receivables’. The ciassification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined nt the time of initial recognition.
.4flecuve interest metizod

The efteotive interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The cffcctive interest rate is the ratio exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net
present value of the financial asset or in a shorter period where appropriate.
Incomes related ta the debt instruments that are heid to maturity and are availabie for sale, and financial
assets that are classiflcd as loans and receivables are calculated according to the effective interest rate
method.

Availablefor salefinancial assets

Some of the shares and tong term marketable securities heid by the Group are ciassifled as avallable for
sale and recognized al their fair values.
The financial assets, which are not priced in an active market and the fair value cannot be recognized
accurately, are recognized at cost less accumulated impairments.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized direotiy in the investments revaluation
reserve with the exception of impairrnent losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets which are recognized directly in the
consolidated income statement. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gam or Ioss previously recognized in the investments revaluation reserve is included in the
consolidated income statement for the period.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Princip)es Applied 1 Significant Accounting Policias (cont’d)

2.8.8 Financial instrumen(s (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Availablefor sa!eflııancial asseis (conı d)

Soane of the shares and tong term marketable sccurities heid by the Group ara classifled as available for
sale and recognized at their fair values.

Receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables ara initialiy recognized nt thcir fair value. Subsequently,
receivables are ıneasured at arnortized cost using the effective interest method.

hııpaiıınent offlnancial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value througtı profit or tass, are assessed for indicators of
impairrnent at each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, ilie
estimated ftıture cash flows of the investment have baca impacted.

For reocivables, the amount of the impairment is the difference betwecn the asset’s carrying amount and
the present vaiue of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying arnount of the financial asset is reduced by the irnpairment loss dircctty for ali financial
assets whh the exccption of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts prcvious!y writtcn off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account ara recognized in the consolidated
incorne staternent under general administradve expenses.
With the cxception of available for sale equity instrurnents, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment Ioss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring afler the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment Iass is reversed tlwough profit or loss
to the extent that the carıying amount of the investrncnt nt the date the impairment 15 reversed does not
exceed what the amortized cost would hava been had the impairment not been recognized.
in respeci of available for sale equity securities, any inerease in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash eqzdvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly Iiquid
investmenrs which their maturities are three-months or Iess from dale of acquisition and that are readiiy
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of ehanges in vaiue. The
carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabititles and equity instruments issued by the Group are ciassifled according to the substance
of the contractual armngements entered into and the definitions of a financial liabiliiy and an cquity
insrrument. An equity instrument k any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asseis of the
Group after deducting alI of its Iiabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specifle financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities are ciassifled as cither financial Iiabilities ‘at fair value through profit or ross’ ot other
financial liabilities.

0/herfinancial liabiliıies

Other financial habilities are initially accounted at fair value, net oftransaction costs.

Sııbsequently other financial liabilities are accounted at amortized cost using the eFective interest
method, with interest expense recognized on an eftective interest rate bask.

The effectivc interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating the interest expense to the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments through the expected Ilk of the financial liabiluiy, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accountinp

Derivatives are initially recognized at cost of acquisition and are subsequently accounted to their fair
value al the end of each reporting period. The method of recognizing the result of gam or Ioss 15
dependent on the nature of the item being hedged.

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Group designates certain derivatives as either a
hedge of the fair value of a reeognized asset or Iiability (fair value hedge) or a hedge from changes that
could affect the statement of income due to a specific risk in cash flow of a forecasted transaction (cash
flow hedge. Fair value of the Group’s interest swap contracts 15 determined by vatuation methods
depending on analyzable market data.

Changes in the fair value of the derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges and that
are highly effective, are recognized in equity as hedging reserve. Vhere the forecasted transaction or flrm
commitment results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, the gains and losses previously booked
under equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or liability. Otherwise, amounts booked under equity are transferred to the consolidated
statement of income and ciassifled as revenue or expensc in the period in which the hedged item aects
the statement of income.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.8.8 Financial instruments (cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments and hede accounting (cont’d

When theIıedging instmment expires, is sold, ot when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge than
hedge accounting k terminated. Any cumulative gam ot Ioss existing in egııity at İhat time remains in
equity and is recognized when the committed or forecasted transaction ultirnateiy is recognized in the
statement of incorne. However, if the hedged transaction is not realized, the curnıılative gam or bas that
was reported in eqııity is immedmateiy transferred ta the profit or loss of the current period.

The Group measures the derivative financial instruments held for fair value hedge purpose with their fair
values and recognizes thern in the consolidated income statement under financial incorne/(expense.

2.8.9 The ellects of foreign cxchangc rate ehanges

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transaclions. Assets and liabilitles denominated in foreign currencies are converted al the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date.

The Oroup records foreign currency (currencies other ıhan the funetional curreney of the related
company) transactions using exchange rates of the date the transaction k completed. Foreign currency
monetary items are evaluated with exchange rates as of reporting date and arising foreign exchange
income/expcnses are recorded in consolidated slatement of income. MI rnonetary assets and liabilities are
evaluated with cxchange rates of the reporting date and related foreign curreney translation differences
are transferred to consolidated statement of incorne. Non-monetary foreign currency iterns tlıat are
recognized at cost are evaluated with historic exchange rates. Non-monetary foreign currency iterns that
are recognized nt fair vğlue art evaluated with exchange rates of the dates their fair values art
determmned.

2.8.10 £arnings per share

Earnings per share, disclosed in the consolidated income statement, are determined by dividing the net
income attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period concerned.

in Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by distributing “bonus shares” 10 shareholders from
retained earnings. in computing earnings per share, such “bonus share” distributions are assessed as
issued shares. Accordingiy, the weighted-average number of shares art computed by taking into
consideration of the retrospective effects of the share distributions.

2.8.11 Subseguent events

Subsequent events inelude ali evenis that lake place between the balance sheet date and the dale of
authorization for the release of the balance sheet, afthough the events occurred after the announcements
related to the net profltlloss or even after the public discbosure of other selective financial information.

in the case that events occur requiring an adjustment, the Group adjusts the amounts recognized in its
consolidated financial statements to reflect the adjustments afler the balance sheet date. Post period end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Signiflcant Accounting Policics (cont’d)

2.8.12 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized whcn the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past legal or subtle
event, where it 15 probable that the Group wili be required to settle that obligation and when a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent liabilities are assessed eonlinuously to
determine the probability of outflow of the economically beneficial assets. For contingent liabilities,
when an outflow of resources embodying econornic beneflts are probable, provision is recognized for this
contingent liability in the period when the probability has changed, except for the cases where a reliable
estirnate cannot be made.

When the Group’s contingent Iiabilities’ availability is possible but the amount of resources containing
the economic beneflıs cannot be measured reliabiy, then the Croup discloses this faet in the notes.

2.8.13 Related partics

A related party 15 a person or entity that is related to reporting entity, the entity that Is preparing its
financial staternents.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s famlly is related to a reporting entity if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(ii) has signiflcant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key rnanagcmcnt personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the

reporting entity.

(b) An entity 15 related tü ü reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies;

(1) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, sub5idiary and fellow subsidiary is rclated to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate orjoint venture of the other entity (or an associate orjoint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity Isa member).

(ili) Both entitles arejoint ventures of the same third party.
(Iv) One entity 15 a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity,
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting

entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity 15 itseif such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entity is controlled orjointly controlled by a person identifled in (a).
(vii) A person identifled in (a)(i) has signiflcant influence over the entity or is a member of the key

rnanagement personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Signiflcant Accounting Polieies (cont’d)

2.8.13 Re)ated parties (cont’d)

A related party transaction 15 R transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is eharged.

2.8.14 Taxation and deferred income taxes

Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent cornpany and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax
return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the consolidated financial statements, have been
ca1cuated on a separate-entity basis.

Incorne tax expense represents the alım of the curreat tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the yeaT. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense ıhat am
ıaxable or deductible in future and it further excludes itcms that are never taxable or deducrible. The
Group’s liability for current taz 15 calculated using tax rales that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 determined by calculating the temporaiy digerences between the carrying arnounts of
assets/liabilities in the financial staternents and the corresponding tax bases, used in the computation of
the taxable profit, tısing currently enacted tax rates. Deferred tax Iiabilities are generaliy recognized for
alt taxable temporary diWerences where deferred tnx assets resulting from deductible temporary
diWerences are recognized to the extent that it 15 probable that future taxable profit wili be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in e transaction that affects neither the taxablc profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Croup is able to control ilie
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference wili not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are oniy recognized if it is probable that there wiil be surncient taxable proflts
against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future. -

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it la no longer probable that sufflcient taxable proflts wili be available to allow ali or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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NOTE 2 - BASJS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE CONSOLIDATED FLNANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied t Significant Acconnting Policios (cont’d)

2.8.14 Taxation and deferred income taxcs (cont’d)

Deferred fax (cont’d)

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are measured at the fax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
whiclı the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax Iaws) that have been enacted
or substantively enneted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of defcrrcd tax Iiabililies and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow froın the manner in which the Group expeets, at the
reporting date, to recover or seitle the carrying amount of its assets and Iiabilities.

Deferred tax assets and Iiabilities are offset when there k a legaliy enforceable right ta set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levled by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and Iiabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred fax are recognized as an expense er incoıne in the consolidated incorne staternenı,
except when they relate to the iterns eredited or debited directly to the eqııity (in this case the deferred tax
related to these itcrns 15 also recognized direotiy in the equity), or where they arise froın the initial
accounting of a business combination. in the case of a business cornbination, the tax effect is taken into
account in calculating goodwiH er determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identitiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilitles over cost.

2.8.15 Empioyec benefits

According to the Turkish and Romanian Jaw and union agreements, employee termination payments are
made to employees in the case of retiring or involuntariiy Icaving. Such payrnents ato considered asa part
of defined retirement benefit plan in accordance with IASI9 (revised) “Ernployee Bencflts” (‘<tAS 19”).

The termination indemnities accounted in the balance sheet and seniority incentive premium in
accordance with the union agreements in force represent the present value of the residual obligation.
Actuarial gains and losses, on the other hand, are recognized in the statement of other comprehensive
income.

The Group makes certain assumptions about discount rates, infiation rates, future salary inereases and
employee turnover rates in calculation of provisions for ernployee beneflts. The preseat value of
employee benefits is calculated by an independent actuary and some changes are done in accounting
assumptions used in calculations. The impact of the ehanges in assumptions is recognized in the
statement of income. The details related with the defined benefit plans are stated in Note 16.

Liabilities due ta unused vacations ciassifled as provisions due to employee beneflts are accrued and
discounted if the discount effect is material.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Polieies (cont’d)

2.8.15 Employee beneflts (eont’d)

The Croup companles operating in Turkey are required tü pay sacial insıırance premiurns tü the Social
Securiiy Agency. As long as it pays these insurance premiums, the Group docs not have any krther
obHgation. These premiums are reflected in the payrol! expenses incıırred in the pcriod.

2.8.16 Govcrnment grants and iuccntives

Government grants and incentives are recognized at fair value when there is assurance that these grants
and incentives wilI be received and the Group has met ali conditions required. Government grants and
incentives related to costs are reeognized as revenue during the periods they are rnatclıed with the costs
they wiil cover.

2.8.17 StatemeDt of cash flows

Cnsh flows during the period are ciassifled and reported as operating, investing and financing activities in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Cash flows arising from operating activities represent the eash flows that are used in or provided by the
Group’s steel products and metal sales activities.

Cash flows arising from investment activities represent the cash flows that are used in or provided by the
investing activities (direet investments and financial investments) of the Group.

Cash flows arising from financing activities represent the cash proceeds ftom the financing activities of
the Group and the repayments of these funds.

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of the eash on hand, the demand deposits and highly Iiquid other
short-term investments which their maturities are threc months or less from the date of acquisition, are
readiiy convertibie to cash and are not subject to a significant risk of changes in value.

The transiation difference that occurs due to translation from functional currency to presentation currency
is shown as fransiation difference on cash flow statement.

2.8.18 Share capitaL and dividends

Common shares are classified as equity. Dividends on common shares are recognized in equity in the
period which they are approved and deciared.

2.8.19 Erdemir repurehased sharcs (Treasury shares)

When share capitai recognized as equity is repurchased, the arnount of the consideration paid which
includes directly attributable costs, is net of any tax effects, and is recagnized asa deduction from equity.
Rcpurchascd shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from total equity.
When treasury shares are soid or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase
in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is transferred tolfrom retained earnings.
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NOTE 3- SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The operations of the Group in Iskenderun and Ereğli have been defined as geographical segments.
l{owever, the segrnents wizh similar economic chamcteristics have been combined into a single operating
segrnent considering the nature of the products and the production processes, methods ta allocate the
products and the type of custorners or ta provide services.

NOTE 4- CASU AND CASU EQUIVALENTS

The detail of cash and caslı eçuivalents as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 is as follows:

31 December

_________________

2015

Cash
Banks — demand deposits
Banks — time deposits

____________________ ____________________

Time deposit interest accruals (-)
Cash and cash equivalents excluding interest accruals

The breakdown of demand deposits is presented below:

31 December
2016

41 28
75.433 45.482

4.511.437 2.889.193
4.586.911 2.934.703

(9.206) (4.005)

4.577.705 2.930.698

3 1 December 3 1 December
2016 2015

50.185 16.775
9.857 19.328
9.315 8.775
4.915 493

972 15
42 4

147 92
75.433 45.482

US Dollars
TRY
EURO
Romanian Lci
GB Pound
Japanese Yen
Other
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NOTE 4- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (cont’d)

The breakdown of time deposits is presented below:

US Dollars
TRY
EURO
Rornanian Lei

31 December 31 December

Group’s banic deposits consist of deposits with rnaturity frorn 1 day to 3 months depending on immediate
caah needs. Jnlerest is received based on current short-terın rates on the market.

NOTE 5- FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Long terrn financial investments:

2016 2015

122 79

122 79

As of3l December 2016 and 31 December 2015, ratios and amounts of subsidiaries of Iskenderun Demir
ve Çelik A.Ş. which is a subsidiary of the Cornpany art as followings:

Ratio
Company %

Financial investnwnts ıı’ğğhouı an aciive ınaı*et
Teknopark Hatay AŞ. 5

Joint venture

İsdcmir Linde Gaz Ortaklığı AŞ. 50

31 December Ratio 31 Dcember
2016

95

27

122

%

5

50

2015

79

79

(*) Since the irnpact of financial statemenıs of lsdemir Linde Gaz Ortaklığı A.Ş., which has an assets of
TRY 605 thousand and is ııot active as of ıhe reporting period is iınrnaterial on the consolidated financial
statements therefore not consolidated and valued at cost.

2016 2015

4.441.259 2.866.533
45.026 9.504
24.988 13.016

164 140
4.511.437 2.889.193

Available for sale financial assets

3 1 December 31 December
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(Conyenlence Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally lssued in Turkislı — 8cc
Note34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SURSIDİARTES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FJNANCIAL STATEMBNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMSER 2016

(Amounts arc cxprcsscd as TurLish Lira (TRY Thuıısand’) uııless oılıcrwisc indicated

NOTE 6- FINANCiAL DERWATWE INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Derivative instrurnents for fair value hedRe

As of3l December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
swap transactions for fair valuc hedge are as follows:

deiails of forward, option and cross currency

Assets Liabilities

31 December 2015

Fonvard contracts for fair value
hcdges of currency risk of sales
Ruy USD/SeU BUR
Buy USD/SeIl BUR

Option contracts
Buy USD/Sell BUR

Less <han 3 months
Betwten 3 - 6 months

Nominal NominalFaır Valuc Fair Valuc
value

vauc

____________

281192 14.825 -

__________

281.792 14.825 - —

193.556 4.240 - -

193.556 4.240 - -

141.485 8.57!
14.154 551

155.639 9.122

11.187 1.709
11.187 1,709

22.386 44.841 13.946
30.527 88.421 69
52.913 133.262 14.015

.ğLZi1£ 1i1.IJfl. 14.111W

Il December 2016

Fonvard contracls for fafr valuc
hedgcs of cunency risk of sales
Buy USD1Seli BUR Lcss ihan 3 monlhs

Interest rate swap conlracts
USD floa(ing interest collection /
Fixed interest payment

Basis interest swap contracts
USD basis floating interest collection
t Basis floating interest payment

Between 1 — 5 years

Bctween 1 - 5 ycars

Cross currcncy. interest rate swap contracts
BUR Collection /TRY Payment

-
- 526.845 2.060

-
- 526.845 2.060

Between 6-12 months 51.616
51.616

526.964

22.640 51.616
22.640 51.616

41.705 578.461

Assets Liabilitles

133
133

2.193

Nominal
Fair Value

value

____________

Nominal
Fair Value

valuc

____________

17.848 85

17.848 85

Less ihan 3 months

AVRO CollectionflRY Payment

Cmss currency 1 interest rates swap contracıs
USD CoIIectionfFRY Payment Between 6 - 12 months 44.841

More <han 12 months 88.421
133.262
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(Convenience Transiation irna English of Consalidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in TurLish — Sec
Nde 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI tA.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amcunıs are espresştd s Turflis Lira ÇTRY Thousund) unless othrrwise ndicatcd)

NOTE 6— FINANCIAL DERWATWE INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Derivative instruments for cash flow hede

Forward contrac!sfor cashfirnı’ hedges of curreney risk ofsales:

Buy USD — Seli BUR forward contracts measured at fair value through other comprehensive incorne
are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of forecast saies in BUR. These forecast
transactions are highly probable and their maturities vary between ianuary 2017 and March 2018.

The terms and conditions of the forward contracts match the terms and conditions of the expected
highly probable forecast sales in EUR. As a resuil, no hedge ineffcctiveness arises requiring
recognition and is tracked under other comprehensive income/expense accounts since the
aforementioned derivative transaction is a cash flow hedge derivative transaction until the sales is
realized in accordance with hedge accounting. Afler the revenue is recognised, those derivative
transactions are recognised in the profit ot loss table as fair value hedges until the receivable arnounts
are colieetcd.

la rcspect of these contracts which has a nominal value of TRY 353.686 thousand for the purpose of
hedging cash flow risk, with related deferred tax effect TRY 16.910 thousand was ineluded in other
comprehensive income (31 December 2015: TRY 11.931 thousand).

in dıe currcnt period, TRY 25.238 thousand resulting from the sales related forward contracts was
accounted under the revenuc account of the profit or Ioss tabie (31 December 2015: TRY 50.635).

Cross currency and in!eres! rate sıvap contracis for cash flow hedges of interest rate and czırrency
risk ofborrowings:

Group has flxing contracts for ftıture irnerest and principle payments of fioating interest rate
borrowings. The fair values of these contraets match the floating rate borrowings and was ineluded in
other comprehensivc income. The maturities ofthesetransactions wiil be completed in April 2020.

The terms and conditions of those contracts match the terms and conditions of the floating rate
borrowings. As a result, rio hedge ineffectiveness arises requiring recognition through profit ot loss.

in respect of these contracts which has a nominal vaiue of TRY 148.718 thousand, for the purpose of
hedging cash flow risk, with related deferred tax effect TRY (9.073) thousand was included in other
comprehensive income (31 December 2015: TRY (15.004) thousand).

Coırnnodity sı’op contractsfor hedges ofprice risk ofraw material purehases:

The Group purchases iron ore on an ongoing basis as its operating activities. The Group has
conciuded iron ore swap contracts in order to be protected from price risk of iron ore which shall be
supplied in future and shall be used in the production of reiated sales in line with its contracted sales.
Group’s Iran ore forward contracts measured at fair value through other comprehensive income match
iron ore price risk associated with future long term sales contracts. These sales are highiy probable
and terms and conditions of iron ore forward contracts match 5ales terms. As a result, no hedge
ineffectiveness arises requiring recognition through profit or loss.
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(Convenience Translation into English ofConselidated Financial Staternents Originally lssucd in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SURSIDİARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amouncs re cxprcssed as Turkish ün (“TRY Thound’) unless oİhçnise indkated.)

NOTE 6- FINANCIAL DERIVATWE INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Derivative instruments for cash flow lıedRe (cont’d)

Commodhy sıvap conıractsfor hedges ofprice ;isk of rmı’ rnaleria! purohases (corn ‘d):

The matııritjes of these 15 thousands tons of iron ore conlracts which has a nominal value of TRY
1,966 thousand, vary unlU January 2017 and fair vahte with related deferred tax effect, TRY 1.719
thousand was ineluded in other cornprehensive income (31 Deceınber 2015: TRY (412) thoıısaııd).

As of 31 December 2016, TRY 2.728 thousand realised reciassification from other cornprehensive
income to cost of inventories duriııg the year (31 December 2015: TRY 2.493 thousand).

NOTE 7- BORROWINGS

Breakdown of borrowings is as foliows:

Short term borrowings
Current pordon of long tent borrowings

_____________________ _____________________

Total short term borrowings

___________________ ___________________

Long term borrowings

___________________ ___________________

Total long tam borrowings

_____________________ _____________________

31 December 31 December
20152016

1.257.986 24.286
1.043.968 1.047.256
2.301.954 1.071.542

1.617.534 1.904.361
1.617.534 1.904.361

3.919.488 2.975,903

As of 31 December 2016, the breakdown of the Group’s
weighted average interest rates is presented as follows:

Type of
Curreney

Ioans with ıheir original currency and their

Wcighled
Average Rate of

Interest 1%)
Shen Tenn

PortianInterest Type

Fixcd TRY 12,45 14.567
Fıxed US Dollars 2,0! 741.365
Fixed EURO 2,84 9.106
Floating US Doflars Libor±I,84 1.382.857
Fioating EURO Euriboftl,62 116.607
Floating lapanese Yen JPY Libcr+0,22 37.452

LongTerm
Port ion 31 December 2016

101.698
85.439

1.096.475
333.922

14.567
843.063
94.545

2.479.332
450.529
37.452

2.301.954 1.617.534 3.919.488
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(Convnience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statcments Originaliy lssued in Turktsh — 8ev
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2016
(Ammınts ait cxpressed s Turtisı Lira (TRY Thoııand”) ımless oüıe,vise indicated.)

NOTE 7- BORROWINGS (cont’d)

As of3l Decernbcr 2015, the breakdown of the Grotıp’s Ioans with
weighted average interest rates is prescntcd as follows:

Weighted

their original currency and their

Ttlıe breakdown of the ban repayments wirh respect

Within 1 year
Between 1-2 years
Between 2-3 years
Between 3-4 years
Between 4-5 years
Five years er more

le their maturities as fobbows:

NOTE 8- TRADE RECEWABLES AND PAYABLES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s other receivables and payables are as follows:

Shoıt term trade receivables
Tmde receivables
Due frorn related parties (Note 30)
Discount on receivables (-)
Provision for doubtfiıl trade receivables (-)

31 Dccember 31 December

Type of Averagc Rate of Short Terrn Long Terrn
Currency Interest(%) Poılion Portion t December 2015Inıcrest Type

No interert TRY
Fied TRY 9,26
Fixed US Dollars 3,99
rLd EURO 3,27
I’bonting VS Uotlars Libor+2,03
Floating EURO EuriboH-0,5
Floating Japanese Yen IPY Libor+0,22

24.286 - 24.286
170.482 12.865 183.347
22.925 52.523 75.448
2.422 46.725 49.147

717.249 1.619.418 2.336.667
103.824 143.919 247.743
30.354 28.911 59.265

1.071.542 1.904.361 2.975.903

31 December 3 1 December
2016 2015

2.301.954 1.071.542
585.316 921.923
480.309 488.184
332.078 328.902
102.893 163.914
116.938 1.438

3.919.488 2.975.903

2016 2015

2.056.215 1.670.078
54.877 43.130
(3.709) (2.586)

(90.482) (77.993)
2.016.901 1.632.629
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(Convenience Translatian irna English ofConsolidated FinaıciaI Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkislı — Sec
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.kŞ. AND ITS SUBSIDİARTES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts am expresscd as Turkish Lira (‘TRYThousand) unless othcrwisc indicated.)

NOTE 8- TRADE RECEWABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

As of the balance sheet date, the detalis of the Croup’s trade receivables are as follows:

Opening balance

Provision for the period
Doubtful receivables collected (-)
Provision released (-)
Translation difference

Ciosing balance

31 Deceinber 2016 31 December 2015

77.993 62.107
1.417 8.210

- (126)
(610) (1.303)

11.682 9.105
90.482 77.993

According to the market conditions and product types, a certain interest charge 15 applied for deferred
trade receivables and overdue interest is applied for overdue trade receivables.

As the Group provides services and products to a large number of customers, colleotion risk is wideiy
distributed amongst these customers and there is no significant credit risk exposure. Therefore, the
Group claes not provide for any further provision beyond the doubtful receivables provisions that the
Group has already provided for in the consolidated financial statements.

As of the balance sheet date, there is na significant arnount of overdue receivables within the trade
receivables.

Other exp!anatory notes related to the eredit risk of the Group are diselosed in Note 31.

The Group provides provision aceording to the balances of ali unsecured receivables under legal
follow up.

As of the balance sheet date, the detalis of the Group’s trade payables are as follows:

Short term trade payables

Trade payables
Due to related partles (Note 30)
Discount on trade payahles (-)
Expense accruals

31 December

2015

1 ianuary - 1 Janunıy -

31 December
2016

882.527 557.016
35.008 26.630
(4.159) (3.086)

1.700 1.643

915.076 582.203
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — Sec
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounls are exprcsscd as Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 9- OTHER RECEİVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s other receivables and payables are as follows:

Short term other receivables

Receivables from water syslem construction
Deposits and guarantees giyen

Lpn terril other receivables

Receivables frorn Privatization Authority
Receivables from water systern construction
Deposits and guarantees giyen
Provision for receivables frorn Privatization
Authority (-)

31 December 31 December
2015

The movcmcnt of the provision for other doubtful receivables are as foltows:

Opening balance

Provision for the period
Other doubtful receivables collected (-)
Translation difference

Ciosing balance

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s other payables are as follows:

Short term other payables
Taxes payable
Employee’s income tax payables
Deposits and guarantees received
Dividend payables to shareholders (t)

31 December
2016

2.709
27.766

9.539
2.112

42.126

31 December
2015

3.093
21.453

7.394
1.740

33.680

(t) Dividend payable represenis the uncollected balances by shareholders related ta the prior years.

2016

1.592 1.763
291 306

1.883 2.069

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

70.236 67.397
12.808 14.036

979 1.033

(70.236) (67.397)

13.787 15.069

1 January -
3 1 December 2016

1 January -

31 December 2015

67.397 62.403
2.887 5.436
(227) (482)

179 40
70.236 67.397
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — Sec
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELiK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SU8SDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(AmcuNs are expreşsed as Turkish Lim (TRY Thousand”) u,üess otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 10— INVENTORIES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s inventories are as follows:

Raw rnaterials
Work in progess
Finished goods
Spare parts
Goods in transit
Other inventorics
Allowance for iınpaimıent on inventories (-)

The rnovement of the allowance for impairment on inventories:

31 December 31 December

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Provision releaged (-)
Tmns!aıion diWerence
Ciosing balance

31 December 2016

168.433 111.752
39.576 39.092

(35.305) (12.256)
36.083 29.845

208.787 168.433
The Group has provided an allowance for the irnpairrnent on the inventories of finished goods, vork
in progress and raw materials within the seope of aging reports in the cases when their net realizable
vahtes are Iower than their costs or for slow moving inventories. The provision released has been
recognized under cost of sales (Note 22).

NOTE 11 -PREPAm EXPENSES

As of the balance sheet datc, the details of the Group’s short term prepaid expenses are as follows:

Insurance expenses
Order advances giyen
Prepaid utiity allowance to employees
Other prepaid expense5

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

2016 2015

834.711 730.302
720.679 473.829
866.700 890.682
768.861 603.435
983.678 409.524
289.205 298.551

(208.787) (168.433)
4.255.047 3.237.890

1 Januaıy - 1 ianuaıy -

31 December 2015

24.355 31.477
5.142 6.465
7.657 6.619
5.359 8.193

42.513 52.754
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMiR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are cxprcssed as Turkislı Lira (TaY Thousand’) unicas ollıcrwisc indicııed.)

NOTE 11— PREPAID EXPENSES (cont’d)

As of the balance slıeet date, the detajis of the Group’s long terrn prepaid expenses are as follows:

Cost

As of 1 ianuaıy
Transfers (*)

Disposals
Tnnslation difference
M of 31 December

Book valuc

According to the recent valuation reports, the fair value of the Group’s investment properties is TRY
484.801 thousand (31 December 2015: TRY 174.782 thousand). The fair values of the inveştment
properties have been determined in reference to the valuations of independent valuation firms
authorized by the CMB of Turkey. The valuations are undertaken predominantly by using the
precedent values of similar properties as references under market approach.

(*) in accordance with the decision taken at the board meeting dated 18 April 2016 regarding
evaluation of lands of Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tie. A.Ş. on Kırikkale, relavent lands are
reciassed to investment properties.

The Group’s ali investment properties consist of land parceis.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group generated rent income amounting to TRY 419
thousand (31 December 2015: TRY 377 thousand) recognized under other operating income.

31 December 31 December

Order advances giyen

Insurance expenses
Other prepaid expenses

NOTE 12- INVESTIYİENT PROPERTIES

2016 2015

64.532 28.490
3.262 12.596
2.963 2.853

70.757 43.939

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
71.731 57.691

6.916 -

- (568)
16.235 14.608

94.882 71.731

94.882 71.731
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssucd in Turkish — Sec
Note 34)

EREĞLt DEMiR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Anıaunts are exprcssed as Tıırkish Lim (‘TRY Thousand’) unlcss oIhcnyic indicaced,)

NOTE 13— PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

The breakdown of depreciation expenses related to property, plant and cquipment is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

Associated wiih cost of production 609.576 529.213
General administrative expenses 8.397 6.846
Marketing, sa(es and distribution expenses 20.416 18.142
Research and development expenses 1.309 SOl

639.698 555.002

NOTE 14- INTANGJBLE ASSETS

Other Intangible

__________________

Assets Total
Cost
Opening balance as of 1 Januaıy
Translation difference
Additions
Transfers frorn CIP
Disposais

_______________ _______________ ______________

Net book value as of 31 December 2016

________________ ________________ _______________

Accuıııulated anıortization
Opening balance as of 1 January
Translation difference
Charge for the period

________________ ________________ _______________

Ciosing ba)ance as of 31 December 2016

________________ ________________ _______________

Net book value as of 3 1 December 2015

Net book value as of3I December 2016

Rigfls

333.815 14.318 348.133
70.142 4.455 74.597
10.448 204 10.652
5.968 1.528 7.496

- (941) (941)
420.373 19.564 439.937

(163.510) (11.758) (175.268)
(34.932) (4.269) (39.201)
(18.983) (1.006) (19.989)

(217.425) (17.033) (234.458)

170.305 2.560 172.865

202.948 2.531 205.479

As of 31 December 2016, the Group has no collaterals or pledges
December 2015: None).

upon its intangible assets (31
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(Convenicnce TransIaton into English of Consolidated Financial Statemeats Originaliy lssued in Turkish — Sce
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEr) 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounls ute expresscd as Ttırkish Lira CTRY Thousand’) unlcss olber.ise indicated,)

NOTE 14— INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

Cost

Opening balance as of 1 Januaıy
Translation diffcrence

Additions

Transfers fmm CIP
C losing ba!ance as of 3 1 December 2015

________________ ________________ _______________

Accumulated arnortization
Opening balance as of 1 ianuazy

Translation difference

Charge for the period

________________ ________________ _______________

Ciosing balance as of3I

_______________ _______________ ______________

Net book value as of3l

Net book valuc as of 31 December 201 5

The breakdown of amortization expenses related to intangible assets is as follows:

Associated wkh cost of production
General administrativc expcnscs
Marketing, sales and distribution expenses
Research and development expenses

629
76

19.989 16.061

NOTE 15- GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTWES

These grants and incentives can be used by alI companies,
requirements and those grants have no sectoral differences:

1 Incentives under the jurisdiction of the research and development law (100% corporate tax
exemption etc.)

1 Cash supooris from Tubitak—Teydeb, in return for research and devolopment expenditures,
/ lnward processing permission certificates,
/ Social Security lnstitution incentives
/ Insurance premium employer share incentive.

Researeh and development incentive premiums taken or certain to be taken amounts to TRY 801
thousand (31 December 2015: TRY 836 thousand) which are accounted under income statcment for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Other Intangible

Assets TotalRights

252.514 9.717 262,231
62.283 3.983 66.266
14.944 618 15.562
4.074 - 4.074

333.815 14.318 348.133

(119.676) (7.212) (126.888)
(28.403) (3.916) (32.319)
(15.431) (630) (16.061)

(163.510) (11.758) (175.268)

132.838 — 2.505 135.343

170.305 2.560 172.865

December 2015

December 2014

31 December
2016

12.815
6.469

31 December
2015

12.150
3.363

54$

which meet the related legislative
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(Convcnience Translation into English of Consolidared Financial Staternents Originaliy lssued in Turkish — 8cc
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EREĞLi DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRiKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSJDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMRER 2016

(Anounts are cxpressed as Turkish Un (“TaY Thousand) urılcss otlıcrwi,c jodicated.)

NOTE 16— EMPLOYEE BENEflTS

The Group’s short term payables for employee benefits are as follows:

31 December 3 1 December

Duc to personne!

Social securiiy prerniurns payable

2016 2015
109.062 93.459
59.662 26.241

168.724 119.700

Leng terrn provision of the eınployee termination beneflts of the Group is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2015

Provisions for ernployee tennination benefits
Provisions for senioflty incenhive prcrnium
Provision for unpaid vacations

2016

448.932 404.699
38.884 28.289
79.603 72.927

567.419 505.915
According to the articles of Turkish Labor Law in force, there is an obligation ta pay the legal
ernployee termination beneflts to each ernployee whose employment contracts are ended properiy
entitling thern ta receive employee termination beneflts. Also, in accordance with the effective laws of
the Social Insurance Act Na: 506 No: 2422 on 6 March 1981 and No: 4447 on 25 August 1999 and
with the amended Article 60 of the related Act, it is obliged to pay the ernployees thcir legal empioyec
termination beneflts, who are enthled to terminate.

As of 31 December 2016, the amount payable consists of one rnonth’s salary lirnited to a maxirnurn of
TRY 4.297,21 (31 December 2015: TRY 3.828,37). As of 1 January 2017, the employee termination
benefit has bernı updated to a rnaximurn of TRY 4.426,16.

The ernployee termination benefit legally is not subject to any funding reqııirernent.

The employee termination benefit has been calculated by estirnating the present value of the future
probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of employees. TAS 19 (“Employee
Hcneflts”) requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estirnate the Group’s obligation
under defined benefit plans. The obligation as of 31 Deceınber 2016 has been calculated by an
independent actuary. The actuarial assurnptions used in the calcutation of the present value of the
future probable obligation are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December2ol5

11,00% 10,70%
7,80% 7,75%

reel 1,5% reel 1,5%
Maximum Iiability increase 7,80% 7,75%
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2OI6

(AmounLs are cxprcsscd as Turkish Lira (TRY Tbousand) unless othenyise indicaled.>

NOTE 16— EMPLOYEE BENEflTS (cont’d)

Discount rates are determined considering the expected duration of the retirement obligations and the
cLırrency ili which the obligations wili be paid. in calculations as of 31 December 2016, a flxed
discount rate is used. Long tam infiation estirnates are made using an approach eonsistent with
discount rate estimates and long terrn infiation rate flxed over years is used.

The anlicipated rate of resignation which do not result in the payınent of employee benefits is also
considered in the calculation. The anticipated rate of resignation is assurned to be relaled with the past
experience, tlıcrcforc past experiences of ernployees are analyzed and considered in the calculation. in
the actuarial calculation as of 31 December 2016, the anticipated rate of resignation is considered to be
inversely propartioral to the past cxperience. The anticipated rate of resignation is between 2%-0% for
the employees with past experience between 0-15 years or over.

The movement of the provision for empioyee termination beneflis is as follows:

Opening balance
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial Iossİ(gain)
Termination benefit5 paid
Translation difference

____________________________________________

Ciosing bahance

____________________________________________

Sensitivity level

Rate
Change in employee benefits llabiiity

Rate
Change in employee beneflts llabillty

Interest rate
1% increase 1% decrease

(37.577) 43.542
Infiation rate

1% increase 1% decrease
44.489 (38.232)

1 January - 1 Januaıy -

31 December 201 6 3 1 December 2015

404.699 393.478
41.921 40.125
40.319 30.466
(8.006) (22.930)

(30.965) (36.709)
964 269

448.932 404.699

The sensitivity anaiysis of the assumptions which was used for the calculation of
employment termination beneflts as of 31 December 2016 as follows:

provision for
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amoutts m expresscd as Tıırkish Lim ÇTRY Thousrıd”) ünless oiherwise indicated.)

NOTE 16— EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (cont’d)

According to the currcnt labor agreernent, ernployees complcting their lOth, iSth and 2Oth service
ycars receive seniority incentive prerniuın payments.

The rnovernent of the provision for seniority incentive premfurn is as follows:

Opening batance
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial Ioss/(gain)
1’ennination benefits paid
Translation difference

___________________________________________

Cbsing balance

___________________________________________

The movement of the provision for unused vacation is as follows:

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Vacation paid during the period (-)
Provisions released (-)
Translation difterence

___________________________________________

Ciosing balance

NOTE 17- PROVISIONS

The Group’s short terrn provisions are as follows:

Provision for Iawsuits
Provision for termination fee of long term contract
Penalty prov. for employment shoflage of disabled pers.
Provision for state right on minüıgactivitfes
Provision for Iand occupation
Provision for the potential tax penahy

1 ianuaıy -
31 December 2016

1 Januaıy -

31 December 2015

28.289 25.389
4.315 3.970
3.069 2.229
4.802 (1.743)

(1.522) (1.602)
(69) 46

38.884 28.289

1 January -

31 December 2016
1 January -

31 Dccernber2ol5

72.927 68.857
60.847 54.151
(4.214) (5.102)

(50.255) (45.042)
298 63

79.603 72.927

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

105.448 88.280
- 218.070

7.488 5.434
2.650 2.589

16.602 122.634
13.398 -

145.586 437.007
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(Convcnience Translation into English of Consolidated Finanotal Stntements Originally Issued in Turkish — See Note
34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are exprcsscd as Turkisb Lü (TRYThousand”) u:fless oıIıenisc ndkatedj

NOTE 17— PROVISIONS (cont’d)

Provision for lawsuits

As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, lawsuits filed by and against the Gronp are as follows:

31 Decembcr 31 December
2016 2015

Lawsuits fded by the Group 526308 474.468
Provision for Iawsuits filed by the Group 64.076 54.849

The provisions for the Iawsuiıs filed by the Group represenis the doubtfiul trade receivables.

3 L December 31 December
2016 2015

Lawsuits filed against the Group 348.856 293.156
Provision for Iawsuits filed against the Group 105.448 210.914

The Company, prepared its consolidated financial staternents as of 31 March 2005, 30 June 2005 and 30
Septernber 2005 accordiııg to CMB’s Coınrnuniqud Serial X1 No 25 on “Accounting Standards to be
implernented in Capital Markets” which is not in effect today, whereas its consolidated financial
statements of 31 December 2005 was prepared according to İnternational Financial Reporting Standards
by virttıe of the Article 726 and Temporary Artiole 1 of the aforernentioned Cornmuniqud, and CMB’s
letter no. SPK.017/83-3483 dated 7 March 2006, sent to the Oroup Management. The aforernentioned
Comrnuniqud (Serial M No. 25 on the “Accounting Standards to be irnplemented in Capital Markets”),
and CornrnuniquĞs inserting sorne provisions Ihereto together with the Communiquds amending it,
became efl’ective starting with the consolidated financial staternents of the first interim period ending
after 1 Ianuary 2005.

CMB asked the Company to prepare its consolidated financial statements of3l Deceınber 2005 alI over
again according to the sarne accounting standards set used during the period, to publish Ihose statement5,
and to submit thern ta the General Assembly Approval as soon as possible, by stating on its decisian na.
2 1/526 dated 5 May 2006 ıhat the Company’s changing the accounting standards set used during the
term (Serial X1, No 25) at the end of the sarne term (IFRS) caused decrease arnount of TRY 152.330
thousand on the period due to negative goodwill income.

The Company chaflenged the aforementioned decision before the 1 lth Administrative Court of Ankara
(E. 2006/1396). This lawsuit was rejected on 29 March 2007, but the Cornpany appealed this rejection
on 11 October 2007. l3th Charnber of the Council of State rejected the appeal on 12 May 2010;
however the Company also appealed this rejeotion on 2 September 2010. However, l3th Charnber of the
Council of State also dismissed ıhis appeal against rejection on 6 June 2012 with its decision Na. E.
2010/4196, K. 2012/1499. This decision was notifled to the Company’s lawyers on 16 JuIy 2012.
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARJES
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NOTE 17— PROVISIONS (cont’d)
Provision for Iawsuits (cont’d)
CMB, prepared the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of 3! December 2005, which had
been prepared according to the İFRS, by adding the negative goodwill of TRY 152.330 thousand, that
had previonsly beca added to the accumulated earnings, to the profit of 2005 on its own motion and
account, and published thern on Istanbul Stock Exchange Bulletin on 15 August 2006; with the rationale
that the Cornpany had not fiılfluled its due demand on grounds that “Articie 726 and Temporaiy
Provision 1 of CMB’s Communiqud Serin! XJ, No. 25 auflorize the use of IFRS on consolidated
financial staternents of 2005, although CMB had giyen the Coınpany a ‘permission’ No. SPK.0,17/83-
3483 of 7 March 2006, and the lawsuits regarding this issue are stili pending”. The Company challenged
CMB’s aforernentioned decision by a separate lawsuit on 10 October 2006. 1 Ith Administrative Court
of Ankara rejected this case on 25 June 2007. The Cornpany appealed this rejection Il October 2007;
l3th Chamber of the Council of State, accepted the appeal request and abolished the rejection judgrnent.
CMB appealed the Charnber’s decision on 6 September 2010. I3th Chamber of the Council of State
aecepted CMB’s appeal and reverted its previons abolishrnent decision, and ratifled 1 lth Administrative
Court of Ankara’s judgınent by the majority of the votes on 30 May 2012 with its decision no. E.
2010/4405; K. 2012/1352. This decision was notifled to the Cornpany’s Iawyers on 20 July 2012.
Had the Company started to prepare its consolidated financial statements in accordancc with İFRS after
31 Dccernber 2005, it would also lıave to present the comparative consolidated financial staterneııts in
accordance with İFRS based on “IFRS 1: First-time adoption of İnternational Financial Reporting
Standards” and the previously rceognized negative goodwill would be transferred directly to retained
carnings on 1 January 2005 instcad of recognizing in the consolidated income statement in accordance
with “İFRS 3: Business Combinations”. Therefore, the net profit for the periods ended 31 December
2016 and 31 Dacember 2015 wilI not be afiected from the above mcntioned disputes.

Cornpany’s Shareholders’ General Assembiy, which was heid at 30 March 2006, decided dividend
distribution aceording to the consolidated financial staternents as of 31 December 2005, which was
prepared according to IFRS. Privatization Adıninistration, who hs a usufruct right over 1 (one) equity
share among the Company shares it transferred to Ataer Holding A.Ş., filed a lawsuit atI May 2006 the
3th Commercial Court of Ankara against the aforementioned General Assembly decision, and claimed
that, dividend distribution decision must be abolished and TRY 35.673 thousand allegediy unpaid
dividend must be paid to itsclf (E. 2006/218). The Court rected the case on 23 October 2008;
Privatization Administration appealed this rejection on 7 January 2009. Court of Appeals’ 1 lth Chamber
reversed this rejectionjudgment on 30 November 2010; this time the Company appealed the Chamber’s
decision on 18 Februaıy 2011. However, the Chamber rejected the Company’s appeal on 14 July 2011.
The case ille, sent back to 3th Commercial Court of Ankara once again. The case was dismissed at the
hearing held on 26 June 2015, The case is at the stage of appeal.

The Company, based on the above mentioned reasons, doesn’t expect for the possible eWects of changes
in the net profit for the year ended 31 December 2005 due to the Iawsuits mentioned above to have any
impact in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

Eneıjia Metal Maden Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. initiated a debt collection proceeding that might end with a
bankruptcy judgrnent against the Company based on the Exporr Protocol No. 69187 of 2 July 2009 and
“Additional Terms to the Erdemir-Enerjia Export Protocol No. 68197” drafled by and between Eaerjia
and the Company. However the process stopped upon the Company’s objection to Enerjia’s request, and
that led Enerjia to file a Iawsuit against the Company before the 7th Commercial Court of Ankara on 27
March 2010 claiming that the objection should be overruled and USD 68.312.520 should be paid to
itsclf(E. 2010/259). The Court dismissed the case, in favor of the Company, on 23 June 2011.
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NOTE 17 — PROVISIONS (cont’d)

Provision for lawsuits (cont’d)

Enerjia appealed this rejcction. 23rd Chamber of the Court af Appeals accepted this rejection on 6 April
2012 (E. 2011/2915, K.201212675) and after this, the case ille was sent back to the 7th Commercial
Court of Ankara and received case ille number E. 2013/17. The case ille was sent to the 4th
Commercial Court of Ankara duc to the case shall seen by delegation according ta the regulatory
framework regarding the commercial courts. The Court has dismissed the case at the hearing heid on 9
September 2015. The case is at the stage of appeal. Na possible material casli outflow expected
according to the evaluations of Cornpany nrnnagement and expert’s reports, as a result rio provision
recognised on financial statements for related lawsuit.

An acılon of debt was instituted by Bor-San Isı Sistemleri Üretim ve Pazarlama A.Ş. against our
company at the 3rd Civil Court of Kdz. Ereğli on 17 April 2013 under ille no 2013/253 Esas claiming
for the compensation of the loss arising from the sales contract of TRY 18 thousand, reserving the rights
for surplus. The Company was informed ftom the amendment petition, that the plainıiff pleaded from
the court ta raise the claim to TRY 10.838 thausand as assessed by the expert opinion submitted to the
court. The Company contested to the expert opinion and the arnendment petition within the statutory
period. The court has giyen the judgment of dismissal on 11 March 2014. The p1aintif Bar-San Isı
Sistemleri Üretim ve Pazarlanıa A.Ş. has appealed against thejudgment. Upon the reversal ofjudgment,
the Company appealed the decision of Supreme Court of Appeal. The rejection decision of Supreme
Court of Appcal has been notifled to the Company on 28 ianuary 2015. The case ongoing with the
Kdz. Ereğli Civil Court of First lnstance 3rd has dismissed at the hearing held on 9 September 2015.
Court of Appeals’ IOth Chamber disrnissed the appellate request of Bor-San Isı Sistemleri Üretim ve
Pazarlama A.Ş. and acceptcd the appellate request of the Company in terms of retainer fee. Revision of
the decision has been demanded by Bor-San Isı Sistemleri Üretim ve Pazarlama A.Ş. against the
decision of Court of Appeals’ 1 9th Chamber. The case is nt the stage of revision of decision nt the
Supreme Court.

Corus International Trading Ltd. Co. (new ırading title: Tata Steel İnternational (Nortlı America) Ltd.)
located at Illinois state of United States of America and the Company executed a contraet in 2008. The
company fulfilled alI its perforınances arisen from this contract in Januaıy and February in 2009.
Corus İnternational Trading Ltd. Co. sold to third parties the producıs supplied from our company but
thereafter alleged that they directed claim ta some compensation and that these claims must be covered
by Erdemir. Partles could not reach an exact agreement about this matter and then Corus İnternational
Trading Ltd. Co filed an action for compensation at amount of USD 4.800 thousand together with
accessory against the Company in Illinois State District Court of USA. It is learnt through a notifled
made ta the Company on 21 inIy 2010. After the subject case 15 dismissed by the court from jurisdiction
aspeot; this time a Iawsuit is re-filed by Tata Steel International (North America) Ltd.) in Texas State
District Court. This case is alsa dismissed by the court from jurisdiction aspect.

İt is Iearnt through a notifled made to the Company on 31 October 2012 that Corus International
Trading Ltd. Co. (new trading title: Tata Steci international (North America) Ltd.) filed an action for
compensation nt amount of USD 4.800 thousand together with accessory against the Company before
Ankara l4th Commercial Court of First inslance. As a result of adjudication made; the court adjudged
ta dismiss the case on procedural grounds because of non-competence and to send the ille ta
commissioned and competent Karadeniz Ereğli Commercial Court of First Instance in Duty when the
judgment becomes definite and in case of request. The case still continues on ille na. 20 13/63 in
Karadeniz Ereğli 2nd Civil Court of First lnstance. Date of next hearing of the case is 13 April 2017.
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NOTE 17— PROVISIONS (cont’d)

Provision for termination fec oflong term contract

The Company signed fixed rate freight contract on 11 August 2008 for the 2008-2022 period with third
paıties considering the fact that fixed-price overseas transportation of Iran ore supplies with capesize
vesseis shall be more favorable under current market conditions,

The Company has evaluated the extraordinary decrease in freight prices resulted frorn decrease in iron
ore and oil prices started in 2014 and continued in 2015, started negotiations with the service provider
in the last quarter of 2015 regarding the termination of fized price long-term freight contract, which is
in force.

The parties reached an final agreement on 24 February 2016 on termination of the aforementioned
agreement with USD 75.000 thousand fee and signing of a new freight contract.

Despite the termination process of finalizing the protocol signed in the period after the reporting date as
deseribed above, The Company has considered the termination cost as constructive obligation since the
Managcment has taken a decision towards termination process related to the contract as of December
31, 2015 as weil as an expectation is also formed by the supplier regarding the termination of
aforementioned agreement and cash flows can be estimated in a trustable manner as of December 31,
2015 even if the terminauan process is concluded with the protocol after 31 Decemher 2015. As a
resuli, the payrnent of TRY 218.070 thousand (eçuivalent ta USD 75.000 thousand provision
recognised under statement of financial position was completed equivalenl to TRY 226.388 thousand
(equivalent to USD 75.000 tlıousand).

Provision for state right on mirfing activities

According to “Mining Law” numbered 3213 and regulation on “Mining Law Enforcement”published in
the Offlcial Gazette, numbered 25716 on 3 February 2005, the Group is obliged to pay state right on
mining activities based on the sales.

Land occupation

There is a total of 1,976.359,17 square meters of land property within the Erdemir factory area of The
Group consisting of 1.149.640,88 square meters of 6 title deeds being the property of the treasury and
826.718,29 square meters of Iand being within the provision and possession of the state. General
Communique of National Estate with the series number 336 Iays down the methods and principles of
designation, estimation and collection of land occupation to be undertaken by the administration in
respeot of the land properties within the private possession of the treasury. in accordance with the
cornmunique, the Iand occupation is going to be designated and estimated by the relevant value
designation commission with the condition of not being Iess than 3 % of the minimum value which is
the basis for the propedy tax of the Iand propcrty.
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NOTE 17— PROVISIONS (cont’d)

Land occupation (cont’d)

The company filed e case in Zonguldak Tax Court on the date 23 May 2012 on the grounds that it is
againsi the law tlıat the property tax value that had been determined by Karadeniz Ereğli Mıınicipality
in the year 2009 in respect of the whole of the factory area had been calculated over the market value
that had been designated for Uzunkum Street tlıat iş used oniy as e postal address; that it is required to
undertake a separate vahue designation for the properiy tax of the immovable properties within the
factory area; that the property tax should be designated over different ıax values for the factory areas
that are located within a certain region independent from the streets and by-Ianes of the county and that
are different in terms of their values. The court ruled on the date Sth June 2013 that there are no legal
grounds for taking the market valuc for Uzunkum Street as the bask for designating the tax vahue for
the whole factory. As for the land occupation to be deposited, during the court case and after in respect
of the designation of the new property tax market values and in respect of dividing the factory area
depending on different tax zones the cornpany had recognised TRY 122.634 thousand provision (USD
42.177 thousand) as against the case for the period bctween 1 st JuIy 2011 and 31 st Deceınber 2015 over
the minimum values on the bask of current property lax values of the relevant dates.

The company had been served on the date 9th March 2016 with the notifications for ham! occupation
with atı anıount of TRY 93.156 thousand. in accordance with the provisions of the 1 Ith articic of the
General Cornrnunique of National Estate with the serles number 336, under circumstances where no
objection had bcen raised against the deposits of hand occupation payınent and under circumstances
where there is an cash payment; there is a right to make use of a discount to the rate of a total 35 %. As e
result, with reference to the said provision, the method of cash payrnent without raising an objection had
been decided upon by the adrninistration of the company and TRY 63.512 thousand (equivalent tü USD
21.041 thousand) had been paid to Karadeniz Ereğli Distriot Fiscal Omce. TRY 61.981 thousand
(eqııivalent to USD 21.132 thousand) provision for land occupation released under operating income
(Note 25).

in current period, amounting to TRY 16.602 thousand land occupation provision recognised on balance
shcct, considering property fair values presented land occupation notifications issued March 2016 and
ycarly probable increases.

Tax Penalty Provisicu

Tax audh was carried out by Tax Audit Board for one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Erdemir Madencilik
San. ve Tic. A.Ş. for the accounting period 2011-2014. Asa result of the audit, tax and tax penalty
assessments were made for the yaar 2011. With regard to ali tax and tax penalties assessed, necessary
applications vere made in order to restructurc thern within the scope of Law Na. 6736 on Restructuring
of Public Debts, and, amounting to TRY 7.168 thousand provision was recognised in financial
statements for the amount to be paid as estimated tax and default interest.

As a resuht of the eomprehensive corporate tax audit carried out by the relevant tax administration for
the period 2009-20 14 for one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Erdemir Romania SRL in Romania, a total
payment of TRY 6.230 thousand (RON 7.579 thousand) was notifled for alI tax and tax penalties.
Provision was reeognised for the amount to be paid in the accompanying financial statements.
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NOTE 18- COMMITMENTS AND CONTJNGENCIES

The guarantees received by the Group are as follows:

Lctters of guarantces received

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

1.797.646 1.514.383
1.797.646 1.514.383

The Collaterais, Pledges and Mortgagcs (CPM) giyen by the Group are as follows:

A. Total CPM giyen for the Company’s own legal entity
8. Total CPM giyen in favour of subsidiaries consolidated on line
by-linc basis
C. Total CPM giyen in favour of other 3rd parties for ordinary
trading operations

D. Otlıer CPM giyen
i. Total CPM giyen in favour of parent entity
ii. Total CPM giyen in favour of other Group companies out of

the scope of clause 8 and C
Bi. Total CPM giyen in favour of other Brd parties out of the

seope of clause C

2016 2015

112.584 305.891

625.603 787.106

738.187 892.997

As ofJJ December 2016, the ratlo of the other CPM giyen by the Group to shareholders equity isO%
(31 December 2015:0%). Total CPM giyen in favor of subsidiaries consolidated on line-by-Iine basis
amounting re TRY 625.603 thousand has been giyen as collatera! for financial liabilities explained in
Note7.

The breakdown of the Group’s collaterais giyen regarding service purehases according to their TRY
equavalents of foreign currency is as follows:

US Dollars
TRY
EURO
Japanese Yen

31 December 31 December

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

472.815 514.969
109.989 340.257
135.753 206.288

19.630 31.483
738.187 892.997
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NOTE 19- OTHER ASSETS AND LİABILITLES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s other assets and Iiabillties are as follows:

Other current assets

Other VAT receivable
Deferred VAT
Prepaid taxes and funds
Other current assets

Other non-current assets

Other VAT receivable

Other ctırrent Iiabilities

VAT payable

Other current llabilities

Other non-current liabilities

NOTE 20- DEFERRED REVENUE

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Group’s short term deferred revenue are as follows:

Advances received
Deferred income

2016

31 December 31 December
2015

68.156 51.684
8.815 33.417
2.013 1.575

16.675 8.809
95.659 95.485

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

10.856 -

10.856 -

3 1 December 3 1 December
2016 2015

64.382 36.003
7.758 4.647

72.140 40.650

3 1 December 3 1 December
2016 2015

479 442
479 442

Cther non-current liabijitles

3 1 December 31 December
2016 2015

99.215 87.937
7.138 5.440

106.353 93.377
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NOTE 21— EQUITY

As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the capital structure is as follows:

Shareho!ders

Atacr Holding A.Ş.
Quotcd in Stock Exchange

Erdemfr’s own shares
1-listorical capital

Effect of infiation
Restated capital
Treasury shares

(%) (S’o)

49,29 1.724.982 49,29 1.724.982
47,63 1.667.181 47,63 1.667.181

3.08 107.837 3.08 107.837
100100 3.500.000 100,00 3.500.000

156.613 156.613
3.656.613 3.656.613
(116.232) (116.232)
3.540.381 3.540.381

The Company 15 subject tü registered capital limit. The board of directors may, at any time it may thtnk
necessary, increase the capital by means of isstıing bearer shares each with e nominal valLıe of 1 1Cr (one
Kıırus) up to the amount of the registered capital, which 15 TRY 7.000.000.000 in accordance with the
requirernents as set forth herein.

The issuad capital of the Company in 2016 consists of 350.000.000.000 bİs of shares (31 December
2015: 350.000.000.000 lots). The nominal value of each share is 1 1Cr (Turkish cent) (31 December
2015: 1 Kr). This capital is split between A and D group shares. Group A shares consist of 1 share with
a share value of 1 Kr and Group D shares consist of 3.499.999.999,99 shares representing TRY
349.999.999.999 of the issued capital.

The Hoard of Directors consists of 9 members, 3 of which are independeot. The number and
cualifications of independent members are ascertained in compliance with the CMB’s Communique
numbered 11-1 7,1 on Corporate Governance Principles.

The General Assembiy has to choose one member ta the Board of Directors from the nominees of the
Privatization Administration as the beneflciary owner representing A Group shares. in case, the Board
member representing the A Group shares leaves the board within the chosen period, a new board
member is obliged to be chosen from the nominees of the Privatization Administration as the
beneflciary owner. For decisions to be taken about the rights assigned to A Group shares, the board
member reprcscnting A Group shares is also obliged to use an affirmative vote. The decisions to change
the Artiales of Association of the Company that wilI have an effcct on the board of directors’ meeting
and decision quorum, rights assigned to A Group shares, rights assigned to A Group shares in relation
to investments and employment decisions and an>’ other changes in the ArticLes of Msociation of the
Company which wili directly or indirectly affect the rights of A Group shares, have to receive an
arnrmative vote of the beneflciary owner representing the A Group shares. Othcrwise, the decisions are
accepted as invalid.

3 1 December
2016

31 December
2015
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NOTE 21 — EQUITY (cont’d)

Article 1V-K of Artleles of Association “According to Ttırkish Commercial Code Article 329,
transactions of an entity’s own shares” Erdemir, as of 31 December 2016, holds its own shares with a
nominal value ofTRY 107.837 thousand (31 December 2015: TRY 107.837 thousand). Erdemir’s own
shares have been reciassifled with its infiation adjusted vaine in the consolidated balance sheet as a
deduction under equity.

31 December 31 December
Othercquity items 2016 2015

Share premium 106.447 106.447
Revaluation reserves of tangible assets 29.437 27.215
-Revaluation reserves offangible asseis 29.437 2Z2 15
Cash Plow Hedging Reserves 8.013 (2.192)
Foreign currency translation reserves 6.522.205 4.012.449
Actuarial (loss gam fiind (101.527) (107.795)
Restricted reserves assorted fiom profit 1.166.197 950.831

-Legal reserves 1.166.197 950.831
Retained earnings 2.420.078 2.527.180

-Evtraordinrny reserves 72 Z 814 781.469
-Acczınıulatedpmfl! 934+237 987.681
-Stat zıtcry resen’es 758.027 758.027

10.150.850 7.514.135
However, in accordance with the communiqu nurnbered 11-14,1 “Communiqu on the Principles of
Financial Reporting in Capital Markeis” (“the Communiqud”) on 13 June 2013 which 15 published on
Ofticial Gazette numbered 28676, “Paid-in capital”, “Restricted profit reserves” and “Share premium”
should be presented by using their registered amounts in the statutory records. The restatement
differences (c.g. infiation restatement differences) arising from the application of this Communiqu
should be associated with the:

- “Capital restatemcnt differences” account, following the “paid-in capital” line iteın in the
financial statements, if the differenees are caused by “paid-in capital” and have not been added
to capital yet;

- “Retained earnings”, if the differences are arising from “restricted profit reserves” and “share
premium” and have not been associated with either profit distribution er capital increase yet.

Other equity items are carried at the amounts that are valued based on the CMB’s Financial Reporting
Standards.

Capital restatement differences may onty be considered as pan of the paid-up capital.

Listed companies distribute dividend in accordance with the Cornmuniqud No. 11-19.1 issued by the CMB
which is egectjve from February 1, 2014.
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NOTE 21— EQUITY (cont’d)

Companies distribule dividends in accordance with their dividend payment policies settled and dividend
payrnent decision taken ili general assembly and also in conforrnity with relevant legislations. The
comrnuniqu does not constitute a minirnum dividend rate for the publicly-held subsidiaries. Companies
distribute dividend in accordance with the method defined in their dividend policy or anicles of
incorporation. in addition, dividend can be distributed by fixed or variable installments and advance
dividend can be paid in accordance with profit on interbn fınancial slatements of the Company.
in accordaııce with the Turkish Commercial Code (TCC), unless the required rcscrvcs and the dividend
for shareholders as determined in the anicle of association or in ilie dividend distribution pohicy of the
company are sel aside, na decision may be made to set aside other resen’es, to transfer profits ta the
subsequent year ot to distribute dividends to the hıolders of usufruct right certificates, to the rnembers of
the board of direetors or ta the ernployees; and no dividend can be distributed to these persons unless the
determined dividend for shareholders k paid in cash,
Infiation adjustrnents to issued capital and historical arnount of extraordinary reserves can be used as an
internal source of capital increase, dividend distribution in cash ot the net offfrom prior period losses.
in case of usage of infiation adjustment to issued capital in dividend distribution in cash, ii is subject ta
corporation tax.

Otlıer sources which might be used in dividend dislribution, except the net profit for the period, in
statutory books of the Cornpany are equal to TRY 375.632 thousand as of 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: TRY 596.363 thousand).

The legal reserves and the share premiurn, which is regarded as legal reserve in accordance with TCC
Article 466, are presented using their amounts in statııtory records. in this context, the difference of
infiation restatements in nccordance with IFRS frarnework, that are not subject ta profit distribution or
capilal increase as of the dale of financial statcments, is associated with the retained earnings.
According to the first pamgraph of Article 519 numbered 6102 of the Turkish Commercial Code
(“TCC”), 5% of the profit shall be allocated as the first legal reserves, up to 20% of the paidi issued
capital. First dividend 15 appropriated for shareholders after deducting frorn the profit. Following the
deduction of the amounts from the “profit”, General Assembly of Shareholders k authorized to decide
whelher shall be the remaining balance shall be fully or totaliy placed in extraordinary legal reserves or
whelher it is distributed, alsa taking into consideration the Company’s profit distribution poiicy.
Aceording ta the sub-clause 3 of the clause 2 of Article 519 of the Turkish Commercial Code, after
deducting dividends amounting ta 5% of the paidlissued capital from the part decided to be allocated;
ten percent of the remaining balance shall be appropriated to second legal reserves. If it is decided to
distribute the profit as bonus share, through the method of adding the profit ta the capital, second legal
reserves is not appropriated.

According to the CMB Communiqud, until the company’s Article of Association was revised on 31
March 2008, an amount equal to the first dividend distributed ta shareholders k allocated as status
reserves in order to be used in the plant expansion. Also according to the 1 3th Article of Association
before the revision on 31 Match 2008, 5% of the net profit for the period after taxation is estimated ta
be aliocated as legal reserves up until reaching 50% of the paidİissued capital. The reserve amount that
exceeds the 20% of the legal reserves, defined by the Article 519 of TCC, is recorded as status reserve.
Company’s Shareholders’ General Assembly, which was heid at 30 Match 2012, decided status
reserves can be used as an internal saurce of capital increase and profit sharing.
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NOTE 21— EQUITY (cont’d)

Cash fiow hedging reserve arises from the recognition of the changes in the fair value of derivative
ünancial insıruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows directly in eçuity.
The amoıınts deferred in eqııity are recognized in the consolidated staternent of income in the sarne
period, if the Iıedged hem affects profit er loss.

Revaluation reserve of property, plant and equipment arises ftorn the revaluation of land and buildingş.
in the case of a sale or retirement of the revaiued property, the related revaluation surpius remaining in
the properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to the retained earnings.

The amendrnent in IAS-19 “Ernpioyee Benefits” does not perrnh the actuarial gam /Ioss considered in
the calculation of provision for employee termination beneflts to be accounted for under the statemeni
of income. The gains and losses arising froın the changes in the actuarial assumptian have been
accounted for by “Actuarial (Loss)/Oain Funds” under the equity. The funds for actuarial gains/ (losses)
in the employee termination benefits is not in a position to be reciassifled under profit and loss.

As it stated in Nota 2.1, foreign currency translation reserve arises from expressing the assets and
liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations in reporting curreney TRY by using exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized under
translation reserve in cquity.

NOTE 22- SALES AND COST OF SALES

Cost of sales (-)

___________________ ___________________

Gross profit

__________________ __________________

(iThe total amount of by product exports in other revenues is TRY 8.010 thousand (31 December
2015: TRY 23.409 thousand).

Saes Revenue
Domestic sales
Export sales
Other revenues (*)

Sales returns (—)
Sales discounts (-)

1 January — 1 ianuary -
31 December 2016 31 Deceınber 2015

9.936.330 10.592.118
1.552.114 1.159.922

177.491 198.004
(18.506) (27.678)
(10.925) (7.785)

11.636.504 11.914.581

(9.166.325) (9.854.290)

2.470.179 2.060.291
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NOTE 22— SALES AND COST OF SALES (cont’d)

The breakdown of cost of sales for the periods 1 January —

December 2015 is as follows:
31 December 2016 and 1 January —31

1 Januaıy -
31 December 2016

(5.916.857)
(1.299.385)

(744.573)
(620.483)
(335.8l8)

(52.864)
(19,392)

(145.532)
(39.576)

35.305
(27.150)

(9.166.325)

1 Januaıy -
31 Decernber2ol5

(6.894.340)
(1.212.635)

(698.858)
(531.742)
(290.866)

(65.500)
(26.147)
(87.211)
(39.092)

12.256
(20.155)

<9854.290)

(1 Due to the planned/ unplanned halt production of plant of the Group’s, operations were suspended
temporarlly in the current period. As a result of this, unallocated overheads, TRY (19.392) thousand,
has beeu accounted directly under cost of sales (M Deceinber 2015: TRY (26.147) thousand).

NOTE 23 - RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETING, SALES AND
DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMZMSTRATWE EXPENSES

The breakdown of marketing, sales and distribution expenses according to their nature for the periods 1
Ianuary —3! December 2016 and 1 January — 31 December 2015 is as follows:

Marketing, sales and distribution expenses (-)
General administmtive expenses (-)
Research and development expenses (-)

Raw material usage
Personnel cosis
Energy costs
Depreciation and umortızation expenses
Factory overheads
Other cost of goods sold
Non-operating costs (*)

Freigbt cosis for sales dehvered to customers
lnventory write-downs within the period (Note 10)
Reversal of inventory write-downs (Note 10)
Other

1 ianuary - 1 Januaıy -
31 December20l6 31 December2üls

(141.215) (131.002)
(288.275) (284.738)

(11.088) (9.240)
(440.578) (424.980)
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NOTE 24- OPERATING EXPENSES ACCORDING TO THEIR NATURE

The breakdown of marketing, sales and distribution expenses aceording to their nature for the periods 1
January —31 December 2016 and 1 January —31 December 2015 is as follows:

1 January -

31 December2ül6

(75.697)
(21.045)

1 Ianuaıy -

_!LDecember 2015

(71.000)
(18.690)

The breakdown of general administrative expenses for the periods 1 ianuary —31
Janııary —31 December 2015 is as follows:

Personnel expcnses (-)
Depreciation and amortization (-)
Scrvice expenses (-)
Tax, duty and chavges (-)
Provision for doubtful receivables (-)

December 2016 and 1

1 January - 1 January -

31 December20l6 31 December2ols

(158.976) (150.128)
(14.866) (10.209)

(103.477) (105.430)
(7.262) (7.237)
(3.694) (11.734)

(288.275) (284.738)

The breakdown of research and development expenses for the periods 1 January — 31 Deeember 2016
and t January — 31 December 2015 is as follows:

(7.575) (6.322)
(1.385) (801)
(2.128) (2.127)

(1 1.088) (9.240)

Personnel expenses (-)
Depreciation and amonization(-)
Service expenses (-) (44.473) (41.312)

(141.215) (131.002)

Personnel expenses (-)
Depreciation and amortization (-)
Other (-)

1 January -
31 December 2016

1 January -

31 December 2015
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NOTE 25- OTHER OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSES)

The breakdown of other operating income for the periods 1 January — 31 December 2016 and 1 January
—31 December 2015 is as follows:

Other operatin incorne
Provisions released for Iand occupation (Notc 17)
Interest income from sales with rnaturities
Discount income
Provisions released
Scrvicc income
Maintenance repair and rcnt income
Warchouse incorne
Indemnity and penalty detention income
Insurance indcrnnity incorne
Gam on sale of tangible asseis
Gam on sale of ivestrnent properties
Other incorne and gains

The breakdown of other Dperating expenses for the periods
January—31 December 2015 is as follows:

64.821
16.283
68.015
21.328

10.723 13.676

7.046 13.747
683 989

- 45.767

Other onemtine expenses (-)
Provision expenses
Discount expenses
Provision for terminadon fec of leng ıerm contract (Note 17)
Lawsuit compensation expenscs
Port facility pre-licence expenses
Donation expcnscs
Service expenses
Loss on disposal of tangible asseis
Stock exchange regisiTation expenses
Rent expenses
Penalty expenses
lmpafrment of propeny, plant and equipment (Note 13)
Other expenses and losses

1 January -

31 December 2016

(49.137)
(6.852)

(5.515)
(5.399)
(3.329)
(5.531)
(3.617)
(1.077)
(1.516)
(2.741)

(34.181)
(31.349)

(150.244)

1 January -
31 December 2015

(37.131)
(22.961)

(203.903)
(3.576)
(7.235)
(2.091)
(3.297)
(3.659)
(1.018)
(1.803)
(2.764)
(1.980)

(28.498)
(319.916)

1 ianuary -
31 December2ol6

1 Januaıy -
31 December 2015

63.786
60.210

6.281
23.726
14.017

4.548
2.301

4.191
2.151

29.993 24.440
223.314 275.408

1 January — 31 December 2016 and 1
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NOTE 26- FINANCE INCOME

The breakdown of finance incorne for the pcriods 1 January — 31 December 2016 and 1 January — 3 1
December 2015 is as follows:

Financial incornes

Interest income on bank deposits
Foreign exchangc gains (net)

1 January -

31 December 2016

123.634
232.928
356.562

1 January -

31 December2ül5

86.276
335.431

421.707

NOTE 27— FJNANCE EXPENSES

The breakdown of finance expenses for the periods 1 January —31 December 2016 and 1 January —31
December 2015 is as folhows:

Financial expenses (-)
Interest expenses on borrowinş

Interest cost oF employee beneflts

Fair vaiLle differences of derivative financial instruments (net)

Other financial expenses

1 January -
31 December 2016

(104.548)

(43.388)

(37.228)

(2.641)

(187.805)

1 January -
3! December20l5

(122.551)

(32.695)

(33.369)
(2.529)

_____

(191.144)

During the period, the interest expenses of TRY 2.028 tlıousand have been capitahized as part of the
Group’s property, plant and cquipment (31 December 2015: TRY 388 lhousand).

NOTE 28— TAX ASSETS AND LİABILITIES

Corporate tax oayable:
Current corporate ıax provision
Prcpaid taxes and funds (-)

Taxathn:
Current corporate tax expense
Deferred tax (income) / expense

3 1 December 3 1 December
20152016

530.673 472.407
(75.049) (254.638)
455.624 217.769

1 January - 1 Januaıy -
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

530.673 472.407
169.053 186.650
699.726 659.057
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NOTE 28— TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITJES (cont’d)

Corporate tax

The Oroup, except its subsidiaries in Roınania and Singapore, is subject tü Turkish corporate taxes in
force. The necessary provisions are allocated in the consolidated financial statemenıs for the estimated
liabilities based on the Group’s results for the year. Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent
company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax retum. Therefore, provisions for taxcs, as reflected
in the consolidated financial stateınents, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated frorn the statutory accounting
profit by adding non-deductible expenses, and by deduccing dividends received from resident
cornpanies, other exempt incorne and investment incentives utilized.

The egective corporate tax rate in Turkcy is 20%, 16% in Rornania and 17% in Singapore as of 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: in Turkey 20%, in Romania 16%, in Singapore 17%). The total
amount of the corporate tax paid by the Group in 2016 is TRY 292.818 thousand (31 December 2015:
TRY 384.346 thousand).

in Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis. The temporary tax of 2016 has been
calculated over the corporate earnings using the rate 20%, during the teınporaıy taxation period. (31
December 2015: 20%).

Losses can be carried forward to offset the future taxable income for up to maxirnurn 5 years (Rornania:
7 years). However, losses cannot be carried back to offset the profits of the prcvious periods,
retrospectively.

1r Turkey, a definite and distinct reconciliation procedure for tax asseşsment does not exist. Cotnpanies
ille their tax returns between lApril - 25 April following the ciosing period of the related year’s
accounts. Tax returns and related accounting records may be exarnined and revised within five years.

Income withhoIdin tax

in addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes on dividends
distributed, except for the dividends distributed to fuliy fledged taxpayer companies receiving and
deciaring these dividends and tü Turkish branches of foreign companles. The rate of income
withholding tax applied to alI companies in the period of 24 April 2003 -22 JuIy 2006 is 10%, This rate
was changed to 15% as of 22 JuIy 2006 by the decision of the Council of Ministers, numbered
2006/10731. Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject ta the income
withholding taxes.

19,8% withholding tax must be applied to the investment allowances relating to investment incentive
certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003. lnvestment disbursements without any investment incentive
certificate after this dale which are directly related tü production facilities of the company can be
deducted by 40% from the tazable income. The investments without investment incentive certificates do
not quaIii,’ for tax allowance.
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NOTE 28— TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

lnvestrnent allowance application

With the decision numbered 2006/95, which was taken during the rneeting of the Constitutional Coıırt
on 15 October 2009, the phrase “only related to the years 2006, 2007 and 2008 which was a part of
the Teınporary Articlc 69 of the Income Tax Law was cancelled and the cancellation became effective
from the date the decision has been published in the Official Gazette on 8 Januaş 2010. According to
the decision, the iııvestrnent incentive amount outstanding that cannot be deductcd from 2008 taxable
incorne previously, wili be deducted frorn taxable income of the subsequent profitable years.

Reşarding the cancellation decision taken by the Constitutional Court, an amendrnent was made in dıe
69 1 article in Income Tax Regulation using the regulation numbered 6009 and dated 23 July 2010.
Consequently, in compliance with the cancellation decision of the Constitutional Court, the year
limitation has been abolished and jnvestrnent allowance has been limited to 25% of the profit. As
limitatioıı of investınent allowancc to 25% of the profit by regulation numbered 6009 is found to be
contrary to law by the Constitutional Court, the Constitııtional Court cancelled the regulation and stayed
an execution. Corporate tax ratio of 30% in the prcvious regulation for the ones who benefit frorn
investment allowance has been decreased to the effective corporate tax with the arnendmeni made (31
December 2015: 20%).

Deferred tax

The Group recognizcs deferred tax assets and liabilitles based upon the temporary differences arising
between its taxable statutory financial statements and lis flnancial statements prepared in accordance
with the CMB’s Communiqu on Accounting Standards. These differences usualiy result in the
recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for the CMB regulations and Iax
purposes.

Tax rate used in the calculation of deferred tax assets aM Iiabilities (excluding Iand) are 20% for the
subsidiaries in Turkey, 17% for the subsidiary in Singapore and 16% for the subsidiary in Romania <31
December 2015: in Turkey 20%, in Romania 16%, in Singapore 17%). Deferred tax related with the
temporary differences arising from Iand parcels is calculated with the tax rate of 5% (31 December 2015:
5%).

As the companies in Turkey cannot give a consolidated corporate tax deciaration, subsidiaries that have
deferred tax assets are not netted oW with subsidiaries that have deferred tax Iiabilities and disclosed
separateiy.
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NOTE 28 —TAX ASSETS AND LİABILITIES (eont’d)

Deferred fax assets:
Can>’ fonvard tax losses
Provisions for employee benefits
lnvestrnent incentive
Provision for lawsuits
Provision for termination fec of long teım contract
lnventories
Provision for othcr doubtful receivables
Tangible and intangible assets
Other

______________________________________

Dererred tax liabilities:
Tangible and intangible assets
Fair values of the derivative financial instrurnents
Amortized cost adjustment on Ioans
Inventorics
Other

_________________________________________

in the financial statements which are prep.ared according to the TAS, of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik
Fabrikalart T.A.Ş. and its afflhiates that ara separate taKpayer entitles, the net deferred tax asseis and
Iiabilities of the related companles are ciassifled separateiy within the accounts of deferred fax assets
and liabilities of Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial
statements. The temporary differences disclosed above besides the deferred tax asset and liabilities,
have been prepared on the basis of the gross values and show the net deferred tax position.

Presentation of deferred tax assetsKliabilities):
31 December 3l December

2016 2015

34.243 23.807
(1.577.032) (1.048.802)
(1.542.789) (1.024.995)

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

2.017 2.316
113.400 101.179

7.760 10.532
21,089 42.183

- 43.614
12.683 7.491
14.047 13.479
15.819 11.227
40.313 29.857

227.128 261.818

(1.667.791) (1.250.788)
(10.267) (9.232)
(1.930) (3.472)

(80.088) (17.625)
(9.841) (5.756)

(1.769.917) (1.286.873)

(1.542.789) (1.024.995)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax (Iiabiities)
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NOTE 28- TAX ASSETS AND LİABILITES (cant’d)

Maturhies of carry forward tax losses are as follows:

1 year
2 year
3 year
4 year
5 year

Opening balance
Deferred tax (expense)/incorne
The amount in carnprehensive (expense)fincorne
Translation differertce
Closing balancc

Reconciliation of fax provision is as follows:

Profjt before fax

Statutoıy taxrate

Calculated tax cxpensc acc. to effective tax rate

Reconciliation between the tax provision and calculated tay
- Non-deductible expenses
- Effect of currcncy translation ta non taxable assets
- Inveslment incentives
- Effect af non-taxable adjustments
- Effect of exchange difference arising from deferred tax bases
- Effect of the different tax rates

due to foreŞ subsidiaries

Tabi tax exp. in reported in the consolidate stat. of income

Carıy forward tax losses Deferred tax assets
31 December 2016 31 December 2015 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

12.606 - 12.606 -

- 14.475 - 14.475

12.606 14.475 12.606 14.475

1 January -

31 December20l6
1 January -

December20l531

(1.024.995) (626,229)
(169.053) (186.650)

(4.209) (2.170)
(344.532) (209.946)

(1.542.789) (1.024.995)

1 ianuary - 1 Januaıy -

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

2.271.428 1.821.366

20% 20%

454,286 364.273

2.890 2.777
14.337 (7.906)
2.772 (10.532)
1.064 2.583

224.495 308.159

(118) (297)

699.726 659.057
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NOTE 28— TAX ASSETS AND LIABILİTWS (cont’d)

As of 1 January — 31 December 2016 and 2015, ilie details of the tax gains/(Iosses) of the other
comprehensive incorne/(expense) are as fotlows:

Odıer coııınr?henşive iııcnmeklosğ
in the etmem neriod
Clıange in mvaluathn resewes of fıxed sets
Chsrnge in netuntial (loss)/gin
Change in cu 1mw hcdging rcsan’cs
Clıangc in foreign cuneney translation reserves

1 lonuanı -31 Deceinber 2016
Amount Tax income? Amount

bcforc tax (excensc) aRar tnx
2.521 — 2.521
8.006 (1.601) 6,405

13040 (2606) 10.432
2.580.095 — 2.580.095
2.603.662 (4.209) 2,599.453

Olber cpmprel,enşivc incorne/(lossl
in iliç currvnt period
Chnngc in revalualion rcsc,wcs of fücd asseis
Chunge in actunrinl (loss)/gain
Change in cosb 0ov hcdging reserves
Chaııge in foreign currcncy translation reserves

NOTE 29- EARNINGS PER SUARE

lianunrv-31 Deccmbcr20l5
Amount Tnx incoıne! Amount

before tax (expense) after ta’
3.064 - 3.064

22.930 (4.586) 18,344
(12.078) 2,416 (9.662)

2.462.935 - 2.462.935
2.476.851 (2.170) 2.474.681

1 Januaıy 1 January
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Number orshares oLıtstandinR

Net profit attributable to equity ho1der - TRY ıhousand

350.000.000.000

1.516.438

350.000.000.000

1.125.913

Profit per share with t TRY nominal valuc TRY % 0,4333 / %43,33 0,3217 / %32,17
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NOTE 30- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The immediate parent and ultimate controlling parent of the Group are Ataer Holding A.Ş. and Ordu
Yardımlaşma Kurumu respectively (Note 1).

The transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries, which are related partics of the Group, have
been eliminated in the consolidation and therefore are not disclosed in this note.

The details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below:

Duc from related pa6ies (short term 31 December 31 December
2016 2015

Oyak Renault Otomobil Fab. A.Ş.2’ 40.722 30,868
Bolu Çinıento Sanayi A.Ş.< 7.484 6.060
Adana Çimento Sanayi T.A.Ş. 6.065 6.068
Other 606 134

54.877 43.130
The trade receivables frorn related parties mainly arise from sales of iron, steol and by-products.

Due to reipted nnrties (shnrt ternü 31 December 31 December
2016 2015

Omsan Lojistik A.Ş.O> 8.02! 6.286
Omsan Denizcilik A.Ş.<’ 11.747 6.162
Oyak Pazarlama Hizmet ve Turizm A.Ş.0 8.045 8.954
Oyak Savunma ve Güvenlik Sistemleri A.Ş.0 3.865 ‘ 3,542
Other 3.330 1.686

35.008 26.630

Trade payables to related partias mainiy arisc from purehased service transactions.

Subsidiaries of the parent company
<1) Joint venture
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NOTE 30- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont’d)

Major sales to related paılies 1 Januaıy - 1 Januaıy -

Oyak Renault Otomobil Fab.
Adana Çimento Sanayi T.A.Ş.t1
Bolu Çimento Sanayi A.Ş.t
Aslan Çimento AŞ.°>
Other

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

143.767 147.533
16.523 20.700
14.337 18.973

1.635 1.209

3.497 3.455
179.759 191.870

The major sales to related parLies are generaliy due to the sales transaetions of iron, stcel and by
products.

Major purchases from related parties

Omsan Denizcilik A.Ş.t1
Oyak Pazarlama Hizmet ve Turizm A.Ş»
Omsan Lojistik A.Ş.1>
Oyak Savunma ve Güvenlik Sislemleri A.Ş.>
Omsan Logistica sRLtl)

Other

The major purchases frorn related parties are generally due to the purchased service transactions.

0) Subsidiaries of the parent cornpany
(2) Joint venture

The tcrms and policies ayplied to the transacllons with related parties:

The period end balances are un-secured and their collections wilI be done in cash. As of3l December
2016, the Group provides no provision for the receivables from related parties (31 December 2015:
None).

Salaries. bonuses and other beneflts of the key management:

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total compensation consisting of short term benefits such as
salaries, bonuses and other beneflts of the key management of the Group is TRY 22.919 thousand (31
December 2015: TRY 22.083 thousand).

1 Januaıy - 1 Januaıy -

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
91.641 66.838
64.352 61.441
64.534 41.235
31.846 31.701

8.733 8.524
16,060 12.836

277.166 222.575
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NOTE 31 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERWED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS

Additional information about ünancial instruments

(a) Capital risk manageınent

The Group maııages its capilal through the optimization of the debt and the equity balance that
minimizes the financial risk.

Through the forecasts regulariy prepared by the Group, the future capital arnount, debt to equity ratio
and similar ratios are forecasted and required precautions are taken to strengthen the capital.

The capitah strucwre of the Group consists of debt which includes the financial Iiabilities disclosed in
Note 7, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable ta equity holders of the parent cornpany,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in Note 21.

The Group’s Board of Directors analyze the capital structure in regular meetings. During these anahyses,
the Board of Directors also evaluates the risks associated with each class of capital together with the
cost of capital. The Groııp, by considering the decisions of the Board of Directors, aims to balance ils
overali capital 5tructure through the payment of dividends and new share issues as ve1I as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of exisıing debt.

As of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 the net debt!equity ratio is as follows:

3! December 31 December
Note 2016 2015

Total financial Uabilities 7 3.919.488 2.975.903
4Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net dcbt
Total adjusted equity (*)

Total resourccs

Net debtffotal adjusted equity ratio
Distribution of net debU total adjusted equity

4,586.911 2.934.703
(667.423) 41.200

15,753.547 12.648,179
15.086.124 12.689.379

-4% 0%
-4/104 0/100

(iTotal adjusted equity is calculated by subtracting cash flow hedging reserves and actuarial (Ioss)/gain
fund and adding non-controlling interests.
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NOTE 31 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERWED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instruments (cont’d)

(6) Signiflcant accounting policies

The Group’s accounting policies related to the financial instrurnents are diselosed in Nota 2 “Summary
of Signiflcant Accounting Policies, 2.8.8 Financial lnstruments”.

(c) Financial risk management objectives

The Group manages its financial instruments through a separate treasury function which was
established for that purpose. The developments are fol!owed on a real time basis. The Group’s corporate
treasury ftınction manages the financial instruments througb daily regular meetings by evaluating the
domestic and international markcts and by considering the daily cash inflows and outflows in
accordance with the policies and regulations issııcd by the Group Risk Management Unu. At the end of
each day, each Group company prepares a “daily cash report” and Group Risk Management Unit
calculates daily Value at Risk (VaR) for cash and cash cquivalents. The information included therein is
consolidated by the treasury ftınction and used to determine the cash manageınent strategies.
Additionally, the Group’s annual payment schedules are followed through the weelcly reports and
annual cash management is followed by the monthly reports.

The Group utilizes derivative financial instruments as required and wkhin the terms and conditions
determined by the Group Risk Management Unit. lnstrumenls that are highly liquid and securing a
high-level yield are preferred when determining the financial instruments. in that respecı, the Group has
a right to claim the accrued interest on time deposits when witlıdraw before the predetermined maturity.

(d) Market risk

The Group is exposed primariiy to the financial risks of changes in foreign exthange rates and interest
rates. The Group utilizes the following financial instruments to manage the risks associated with the
foreign exchange rates and interest rates. Also, the Group follows price changes and market conditions
regulariy and takes action in pricing instantaneously.

The Group prefers floating interest rates for tong term borrowingş. To hedge against the interest risk the
Group uses interest swap contracts for sorne of its borrowings.

in the current period, there is no signiflcant change in the Group’s exposure to the market risks or the
manner which it manages and measures risk when compared ta the previous year.
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(Convenience Translation ato English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkislı — See
Nde 34)

EREĞLİ DEMiR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FORTHEYEARENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(Amounls are cxpresscd as Turkish Lira (‘TRY Thousand’) unles, otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 31 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERWED 17110M flNANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instrumcnts (cont’d)

(0 Foreign currency risk rnanagernent

As of3 1 Deceinber 2016 and 31 December 2015, stated in Note 2.8.9 the foreign currency position of
the Group in terms of original currency is calculated as it as follows:

31 December 2016

TaY TRV EURO Jap. Ycn
(Tolal in (Original (Original (Original

CurTency) cuırency) cuntncy) cun’ency)
l.Tmdcgeccivables 331.446 34.756 79081 -

2a. Monclnıy flnancl asseis 86.606 52250 8.741 L387
2b.Non-nııetaş financialasscts . - - -

3. üher 132375 131.871 136 -

4.Corrtnt nsçals (1+2+3) 550.427 218.877 87.958 1387
5. Tn,de receivables

- - - -

6a. Monetaiy flııancial asscls - — —

Gb. Non- ııonctaey financial asseis
- -

7. Other 51315 34.313 3.837 125.024
8. Non-eurrcııt asseh (5+6+7) 52315 34.313 3237 125.024
9.Totnl asseis (4+8) 602.742 253.190 91.795 126.411
I0.Tmdc payables 340.570 298.051 7.514 386.382

1. Financial Iiabilities 181.361 14.567 34.640 1275.021
12o. Otlıerınaııetary fınuncial Iiabilitics 467.036 462.196 1305 -

12b. Othernon-nonetary financial liabflities 445713 445.718 - -

13. Currcn( linlilides (10+11+12) 1.431.685 1.220.532 43.459 1 £61.403
14.Tmde payabks

- -

l5.Financial Iiabihties 419.361 . 113.038 -

16a Other monetaiy financial liabililies 553.451 553.451 . -

16b. Othernon-monetaıy financial Iiabilitks . - . —

17.Non-currentihıtillfies (14±15+16) 972.812 553.451 113.038 -

18.Total Iiaklilies (13+17) 2.407.397 1.173.983 156.497 1.661.403
19. Nat nssctRialltv ısiIion of ofttlnnce shcet drirntiw
flnnneinl inslrumcnts (19n-19b) (517.456) 32.087 (148.129) —

19a. Oübalance sheet foreign cuwency derivative Onancial esseis 112.782 61.061 13.941 —

19b. Oübalancc shect foreign cunency derivative flnancial
Iiabilities 630238 28.974 162070 -

20. Net foreign currencynsseUliabilityposldon (9-18+19) 0322.211) (1.488.706) (212231) (1.531.992)
2t. Net foreign curreney asstt ( liability jnitIou of moneınry
ilcms (I+2n+5+6a-l0.1I-12n-14-I5-J ü) (1.543.727) (1.241259) (68.675) (1.660.016)
22. Fairvaluc of derivalive financial instmnrnts uscd in foreign
cuntncyhedge 54.244 21510 8.554 -

23.Hcdgedforeigncutrencyassets 630238 28.971 161070 -

24. Hcdged foreign cuınncy liabgities 111782 61.061 13941 -

25. Epons 1.560.124
26. Impons 4,855.801
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See
Nato 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDMRIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLJDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2016

(Arnounts are cxprcssed as Turkish Lira (TRY Tlıousand”) unless olherwise indicated.)

NOTE 31 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED EROM HNANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about inancInI instruments (cont’d)

(0 Foreign currency risk managerneat (cont’d)

31 December 2015
TRY 11W EURO .lap. Yen

çrotaI (Original (Original (Odginal
curmncy) currency) currency) curreney)

l.Tınde Receivables 241540 29234 66196 -

2a. Monetnry flnancial assels 47.460 26.445 6367 163
21,. Non- n’onetory financial assets

- -

3. Odıer 135547 133830 541 -

4. CurrrııtasıcLs (1+2+3) 424.547 189.509 73.103 163
5. Trade receivnb les

- -

6a. Mancini)’ financial asseIs - - - —

6b. Nen- ıwn:laiy frnancial asseis - - - -

7. Orhr 55.422 41.946 3227 133.165
8.Non-currentnsseIs (54-6+7) 55.422 41.946 3227 133.765
9.TolaI asscls (4+8) 479.969 231.455 76331 133.928
I0.Tradepayables 321345 281241 7,776 574.931
Il. Financial liabllğias 333.717 194.768 34.012 1.282.188
12a. Dibe, monetaay finuncial Iiabflities 459.280 456.032 152
12b. Dihernon-nioneinıy finoneial liabilitica 211.382 21.382
13. Ciirreni IiaUIiiics (10+11+12) 1325.724 1.143.429 42.540 1.857.119
14. Tradepayables

- - -

15. Financial Iiabililies , 212.421 12.865 59.996 1.200.730
16a. 011w, monetaiy flnancial liabiitles 496.217 496.217
16b. Othernon-monetaiy fmancial Iiabihttes

- -

17. Noo-eurrent iIaUliIIcs (13+15+16) 728.638 509.08! 59.996 1.200.130
18.Toial IflhilIde, (13+17) 2.053362 1.652.511 102.536 3.057.839
19. Nct asseuliahility posidon of ofl.lıılanee suret kri2ile (883.204) (12.224) (274.100) -

19a. Ombalance sheet foreign cunency derivative fınancial assets 156.598 68.178 27.825
19b. OWbalance sheec foreign currcncy dcr<vatwc ftnnncial
Unbilitles 1.039.802 80,402 301,926

20. Net foreign currencyassctllialility pashtlon (9-18+19) (2.457.597) (1.433.280) (300305) (2.923.921)
21. Net foreign currencyasset/ liahility posidon ofmonttary
11cm, (1+2a+S’l-6a.I0-t1-12a.14-I5-16a) (1.553.980) (1.385.450) (29.973) (3.057.686)
22. Fair valge ofderivativc financial instnıments used in foreign
curreney hedge 20,969 - 6,599 -

23. Hedged foreign currency aSscts 1.039.802 80.402 301.926 -

24. Hcdgcd foreign culTency Iiabilities 156.598 68.178 27.826 -

25. E’çofls 1.183.331
26. lovOlis 5.316.966
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(Convcnicnce Trunslation into English of Consolidated Financial Sttements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — Sec
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are cxprcssed as Turkish Lira (‘Tay Thousand’) untcss otlıerwisc indicatdj

NOTE M - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instruments (cont’d)

(0 Foreign currency risk management (cont’d)

The following taNe shows the Group’s sensitivity ta a 10% (+/-) ciıange in the TRY, USD, EURO
and Japanese Yen. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign curreney risk internaliy to
key nrnnagement personnel and represents rnanagement’s assessrnent of the possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

As of 31 December 2016 asset and liability baances are translated by using the following exchange
rates: TRY 3,5192 = US $ 1,TRY 3,7099 = EUR 1 and TRY 0,0300= JPY 1(31 December 2015:
TRY 2,9076 = US $ 1,TRY 3,1 776 = BUR 1 and TRY 0,0241= JPY 1).

31 December 2016

1-TaY net asset/llabiity
2- Hedgcd portion from TRY risk (-)
3- Effect of capitalization (-)
4- TRY net effcct (1+2+3)
5- US Dollars net asseUflabilizy
6- Hedged portion from US Dollars risk (-)
7- Eftect of capilalization (-)
8- US Dollars net effect (5+6+7)

9- Euro net assetİliability
10- Hedged portion frorn Euro risk (-)
Il- Efect of capitalization (-)
12- Euro net effect (9+10+11)

13- Jap. Yen net assetlliability
14- Hedged portion frorn Jap. Yen risk (.)
15- Effect of capitalization (-)
16- Jap. Yen net effect (13+14+15)

TOTAL (4+8+12+16)

ProflUQoss) after capitalization on tangible
assets and before tax and non-controlling interest

Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency

(152.079) 152.079
6.106 (6.106)

(145.973) 145.973

(24.004) 24.004
5.172 (5.172)

(18.832) 18.832

(4.609) 4.609

(4.609) 4.609

(169.414) 169.414
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(Convenience Translation into English ofConsolidated Financial Statcnıents OHginaIIy İssued in Turkish — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEMi ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts are cxprcssed as Turldsb Un r’TftY flousand’) uness cLhcniçe indicued.)

NOTE 31 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
LNSTRUNIENTS (cont’d)

Additional informatioıı abant financial instruments (cont’d)

(0 Foreign currenoy risk management (cont’d)

31 December 20 15

1- TRY net assetlliability
2- Hedged portion frorn TRY risk (-)
3- Egect of capitalLzation (-)
4- TRY net effect (1÷2+3)
5- US DoIIaıs net asseUliability
6- Hedged portion frorn US DoUars risk (-)
7- Efict of capitalization (-)
8- US Doflars net eft’ect (5+6+7)

9- Euro net assetİliability
10- Hedged portion ftom Euro risk (-)
Il- Effect of capitalization (-)
İZ- Euro net effect (9+101 1)

13- Jap. Yen net asset/liabillty
14- Hedged portion from Jap. Yen risk (-)
15- Effect of capitalization (-)
16- Jap. Yen net effect (13+14+15)

TOTAL (4+8+12+16)

(g) Interest rate risk management

ProfiVQoss) afler capitalization on tangible
assets and before tax and non-controlling interest

Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency

(142.106) 142.106
6.818 (6.818)

(135.288) 135.288

(8.327) 8.327
8.842 (8.842)

515 (515)

(7.040) 7.040

(7.040) 7.040

(141.813) 141.813

The majority of the Group’s borrowings are based on floating interest rate terms. in order to manage
the exposure to interest rate movements on certain portion of the bank borrowingş, the Group uses
interest rate swaps and changes floating rates to flxed rates.

İn addition, through the use of dcposits in which the Group has a right to claim the accrued interest
when withdrawn before the predetermined maturity, the Group minimizes the interest rate risk by
increasing the 5hare of floating rate denominated assets in its consolidated the balance sheet.

Furthermore for borrowings denominated in foreign currencies, except for US Dollars, the Group
minimizes its interest rate risk by leveraging in foreign currencics that bear Iower interest rate. İn
addition, a higher interest rate is applied to the trade receivables with a maturity when compared to
the interest rate exposed for trade payables.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Consolidated Finançial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — Sec
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EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARi T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIAR[ES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts am cxprcssed as Turkish Liit (‘TRY Tlıouçand’) unlcss olhenvise indicaled.)

NOTE 31 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DEVED FROM FINANCİAL
TNSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instruments (cont’d)

(g) lnterest rate risk management (cont’d)

Jnteresı rate sansitiviiy

The following sensitivity anaiysis is based on forecasted interest rate changes for the Iiabilities
denominated in variable interest rates. The information detajis the Group’s sensitivity to an
increase/decrease of 0,50% for US Dollars and EURO, 0,25% for iap.Yen and 1,00% for TRY
denorninated interest rates.

Since the principal payments of the Ioans with floating interest rates are not affected from changes in
irnerest rates, the risk exposure of the Group Ioans is measured using a sensitivity anaiysis instead of a
Value at Risk calciilation.

Interest position table

31 December 31 December
2016 2015

Floating interest rate financial instnımcnts
Financial Iiabilities 2.967.313 2.643.675

For the year round, if the US Dollars, EURO and Jap. Yen denorninated interest rates
indrease/decrease by 100 base points in TRY, 50 basc points in VS Dollars and EURO and 25 base
points in Jap.Yen respectively ceteris paribus, the profit before taxation and non.controlling interest
after considering the effect of capitalization and hedging would be lower/higher TRY 5.244 thousand.

(h) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for Iiquidity risk management rests with the Board of Dircctors, which has
built an appropriate Iiquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity ınanagement reguirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and matehing the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities and maintaining adequate funds and reserves.

Lipuidity risk tabies

Conservative Iiquidity risk management ineludes maintaining sufflcient cash, availability of sufficient
arnount of borrowingş and funds and ability to settle market positions.

The Group manages its funding of actual and forecasted financial obligations by maintaining the
availability of surncient number of high quality ban providers.

The folbowing table details the Group’s expected maturity for its derivative and non derivative
financial liabilities. Jnterests which wiil be paid on borrowings in the future are included in the
relevant columns in the following table.
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(Convenience Translatian into English of Cansolidated Financial Statemcnts Originaliy lssued in Turkisli — See
Note 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRiKALARI T.A.Ş. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2Oİ6
(Arnounts art cxprcssed as Tu±ish Lira (‘TRV Tbousand’) unless oıhcrvise indicated.)

NOTE 32 - FINANCİAL İNSTRUMENTS (FAİR VALUE AND FINANCİAL RİSK
MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES) (cont’d)

Additional information about limanda! instruments (cont’d)

Categories of the financial instrumcnts and their fair values (cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be receivcd to seli an asset or paid to transfer a Iiability in an orderiy
transaction between market participanis nt the measurement date.

Estimated fair vatues of financial instrurnents have been determined by the Group by using available
market information and appropriate valuation rnethodologies. However, judgement is necessariiy
required ta interpret market data. Accordingly, estimates presented lıcrein are not necessariiy
indicative of the amounts the Group couid realise in a current market exchange.

The following methods and assumptlons are used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments:

Financial asseis
Financial assets that are carried at cost value iııeluding cash and cash equivalents are assumed to
reflect their fair values due to their short term nature.

The carrying value of receivables, with related irnpairments are assumed to reflect their fair values.

Financial habi!ilies
Fair vaiues of short tcrm borrowings and trade payables are assumed to approxirnate their carrying
values due to their short term nature.

Fair values of long term financial iiabilities arc assumed to approximate their carrying values due to
mostly they have floating interest rates and repricing at short term.

Financial aşset and Iinbilities nt fair valuc Fair vaiue ievel as of reporting date
31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Hnancial nssets and liabilitles nt fair
valuc thmugh profldloss
Derivative fınancial asseis 41.705 - 41.705
Derivative financial liabiitles (2.193) - (2.193)
Financial sscts and liabilities nt fairvaluc
thmugh otlınr comprchcnsive
incomelcxpcnse

Derivative financial assets 28.560 - 28.560
Derivative fınancial flabiities (19.004) - (19.004)
Total 49.068 - 49.068
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(Canvenience Translation into English ofCansalidated Financial Statements Originaliy lssucd in Turkish — Sea
Nato 34)

EREĞLİ DEMİR VE ÇELİK FABRİKALARI T.A.Ş. AND [TS SUBSİDIARİES

NOTES ‘FO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED3I DECEMBER 2016

(Amounts ara cxpressed as Turkish Lira (TRY Tiıousand’) uness othervise indicated.)

NOTE 32 - PLNANCİAL INSTRVMENTS (FAİR VALUE AND FİNANCİAL RİSK
MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES) (cont’d)

AddiUonal information about financial instrnmcnts (cont’d)

Financial asset and Iiabilitics nt hıirvnlue Fair valuc Icvcl as ofreportingdate
31 December 2015 Levci 1 Level 2 Levci 3

Financial assets and iinbilitics at fair
valuc througlı prnflt/Ioss
Derivative financial assets 63.744 - 63.744 -

Derivative financial Ikbilities (14.100) - (14.100) -

flnancial assets and liabilitias nt fair valuc
through other comprehensivc
incomcfexpensc

-

Derivative financial assets 23.265 - 23.265 -

Derivative flnanoiai Iiabiiities (26.750) - (26.750)
Total 46.159 - 46.159 -

First Level: Quoted (non adjusted) prices in active markets for identical asseis or liabilitles.

Sccond Level: Other valuation teehniques for which ali inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair vaiue are observable, either directly or indirectiy.

Third Level: Valuation techniques which use inputs which hava a significant efYect on the recorded
fair valuc that are not ba5ed on observable market data.

NOTE 33— SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.

NOTE 34 - OTHER ISSUES AFFECFING THE CONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL
STATEMENTS MATERIALLY OR THOSE REQUİRED TO BE DISCLOSED FOR A
CLEAR, UNDERSTANDABLE AND İNTERPRETABLE PRESENTATİON

Convenience translation to English:

As at December 31, 2016, the accounting principles described in Note 2 (defined as Turkish
Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards) to the aceompanying financial
statements difter from International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issuad by the
international Accounting Standards Board with respect to the application of infiation accounting
certain reclassifications and also for certain di5closures requirement of the POMCMB. Accordingly,
the accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations in accordance with IFRS.
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